

WASHINGTON STATE REDISTRICTING COMMISSION

---

VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT OF

PUBLIC OUTREACH MEETING

RE: THE 5TH CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

VIA ZOOM

Consisting of pages 1 to 60

May 22, 2021

---

Taken Before:

SUE E. GARCIA, WA CCR # 2781, RMR

Registered Merit Reporter

of

Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc.

2401 Bristol Court SW, #C-103, Olympia, WA 98502

Tel (360) 352-2054 Fax (360) 705-6539

Toll Free (800) 407-0148

e-mail: [admin@capitolpacificreporting.com](mailto:admin@capitolpacificreporting.com)

[www.capitolpacificreporting.com](http://www.capitolpacificreporting.com)

|    |                         |  |
|----|-------------------------|--|
| 1  |                         | APPEARANCES  |
| 2  | SARAH AUGUSTINE         | - CHAIRWOMAN   |
| 3  | JOE FAIN                | - COMMISSIONER   |
| 4  | PAUL GRAVES             | - COMMISSIONER   |
| 5  | APRIL SIMMS             | - COMMISSIONER   |
| 6  | BRADY PIÑERO WALKINSHAW | - COMMISSIONER   |
| 7  | LISA MCLEAN             | - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR   |
| 8  | JAMIE NIXON             | - COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR  |
| 9  | DANIEL PAILTHORP        | - PUBLIC OUTREACH COORDINATOR  |
| 10 | SEAN MURRAY             | - DIGITAL MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS   |
| 11 | MARIA GARZA             | - ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT   |
| 12 |                         |  |
| 13 | NOTE:                   |  |
| 14 | (indiscernible)         | = words heard but not understood   |
| 15 | (phonetic)              | = phonetic spelling of name  |
| 16 | (as read)               | = not an exact quotation of<br>document, paraphrased or not<br>verified with source document |
| 17 |                         |  |
| 18 | (audio disruption)      | = digital platform audio feed<br>break or garbled transmission                               |
| 19 |                         |  |
| 20 | (allotted time elapsed) | = Two minutes of time allowed per<br>person ran out; testifier's<br>audio was muted          |
| 21 |                         |  |
| 22 |                         |  |
| 23 |                         |  |
| 24 |                         |  |
| 25 |                         |  |

|    | INDEX   |      |
|----|---|------|
|    | BY:   | PAGE |
| 1  |   |      |
| 2  |   |      |
| 3  | Opening remarks by Chairwoman Sarah Augustine | 5    |
| 4  |   |      |
| 5  | PUBLIC COMMENT                                |      |
| 6  | Mr. Michael Miller                            | 10   |
| 7  | Mr. Brian McClatchey                          | 12   |
| 8  | Ms. Alma Chacon                               | 13   |
| 9  | Mr. Lance Beck                                | 15   |
| 10 | Ms. Loni Simone                               | 16   |
| 11 | Ms. Yvette Joseph                             | 17   |
| 12 | Mr. John Knapp                                | 20   |
| 13 | Ms. Kirsten Nicolaysen                        | 22   |
| 14 | Ms. Danielle Garbe Reser                      | 23   |
| 15 | Mr. Robert A. Johnson                         | 26   |
| 16 | Mr. Jay Ball                                  | 28   |
| 17 | Mr. Brian Dohe                                | 30   |
| 18 | Ms. Emily Tillotson                           | 31   |
| 19 | Ms. Cecile Ervin                              | 32   |
| 20 | Ms. Mary Porter                               | 34   |
| 21 | Mr. Jack Donahue                              | 35   |
| 22 | Ms. Linda Gunshefski                          | 37   |
| 23 | Mr. Tolar Bryan                               | 39   |
| 24 | Ms. Sandra Brabb                              | 41   |
| 25 | Mr. William Vaughn                            | 42   |

|    |  |      |
|----|--|------|
| 1  | INDEX                                    |      |
|    | (continued)                              |      |
| 2  | BY:                                      | PAGE |
| 3  | PUBLIC COMMENT                           |      |
| 4  | Ms. Deena Bayoumi                        |      |
| 5  | Mr. Jeffrey Olsen                        | 44   |
| 6  | Ms. Molly Austinson                      | 45   |
| 7  | Senator M. Padden                        | 46   |
| 8  | Ms. Jonnie Bray                          | 49   |
| 9  | Ms. Danielle Garbe Reser                 | 50   |
| 10 | Mr. Jeffrey Olsen                        | 51   |
| 11 | Mr. Tolar Bryan                          | 52   |
| 12 | Ms. Kirsten Nicolaysen                   | 54   |
| 13 | Ms. Yvette Joseph                        | 55   |
| 14 |  |      |
| 15 | Closing remarks by Chair Sarah Augustine | 58   |
| 16 |  |      |
| 17 |  |      |
| 18 |  |      |
| 19 |  |      |
| 20 |  |      |
| 21 |  |      |
| 22 |  |      |
| 23 |  |      |
| 24 |  |      |
| 25 |  |      |

1 BE IT REMEMBERED that on Saturday, May 22, 2021, at  
2 1:00 p.m., before Sue E. Garcia, Washington State  
3 Certified Court Reporter, residing at Tacoma,  
4 Washington, the following proceedings were had, to wit:

5

6

\* \* \* \* \*

7

8

CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Good afternoon, everyone.

9

I'm Sarah Augustine, the Chair of the Washington State  
10 Redistricting Commission. I would like to welcome you  
11 to the second public-outreach meeting of the 2021  
12 redistricting cycle.

10

11

12

13

To kick things off, we're going to play a video  
14 message from the commissioners.

14

15

Sean?

16

(Video playing.)

17

18

CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

19

I would now like to ask everyone who's present in  
20 the meeting today if you can hover down to the bottom  
21 of your screen. On your -- on your Zoom page there's  
22 an opportunity to choose translation, and I would like  
23 for you to choose the language you hope to participate  
24 in today 'cause that is for listening. So if you'd  
25 like to hear it in English, you'll choose English. Or

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 if you want to hear the meeting in Spanish, you can  
2 select Spanish.

3 To members of the public who are joining us today,  
4 welcome again. It's my goal as chair to facilitate a  
5 process that is participatory, fair, and equitable. I  
6 will endeavor to engage communities across Washington  
7 as fully as I can and to hear and address your concerns  
8 and requests.

9 Throughout our tenure as commissioners we will  
10 hear public comments that are important, and we will  
11 listen to you. I will do my best to synthesize the  
12 comments, and we will endeavor to respond as we're  
13 able. Still, it is possible that you will bring  
14 forward in your public comments ideas, requests, or  
15 injustices that we may not be able to address. We will  
16 certainly deliberate on the issues where we do have  
17 jurisdiction. Where we don't, I'll do my best to refer  
18 you to those who may be able to respond most  
19 effectively.

20 I'd also like to review our purpose and values.  
21 Together as a commission we've agreed to the following  
22 values and mission:

23 To provide an open, transparent, credible process  
24 that is grounded in statute and where all voices are  
25 welcome and there is access for everyone;

1           To conduct ourselves with transparency, respect,  
2           and civility, where commissioners will participate and  
3           negotiate in good faith;

4           To meet the deadline outlined by law;

5           And to produce the best possible maps for all  
6           Washingtonians.

7           I now want to review the process for today's  
8           meeting.

9           You maybe aware that because of the pandemic the  
10          redistricting cycle promises to be a challenging one.  
11          While we should have received the data from the Census  
12          Bureau that we would need for redistricting by April 1  
13          of this year, with don't expect to have that data to  
14          draw maps until the second half of August.

15          Nonetheless, based on population estimates that  
16          have been ongoing over the last decade, we do know to  
17          some degree that the 5th Congressional District and the  
18          legislative districts within it have less than the  
19          expected average for congressional and legislative  
20          districts and that these districts are going to have to  
21          get larger in terms of the area that they cover.

22          The purpose of our meeting today is to listen to  
23          your input about your community and how to ensure that  
24          the districts are fairly balanced in terms of  
25          population but also respect recognized, shared

1 community interests.

2 The commission may not be able to meet every  
3 interest, but the commission -- but as the commission  
4 tries to weigh the trade-offs inherent to the process,  
5 your opinions are welcome and, I would say, vitally  
6 important.

7 In the 5th Congressional District this afternoon  
8 we have 38 individuals signed up to testify. And we've  
9 added ten additional individuals, if we have time, to  
10 provide you the opportunity to testify, as well.

11 If you live -- for those of you who may live in  
12 another district, we're going to ask for you to go last  
13 to ensure that those from the 5th have an opportunity  
14 to talk about their own communities today.

15 We're going to invite individuals in groups of  
16 three to testify. Each individual will have two  
17 minutes to offer their comment. After three people  
18 have testified, we will see if the commissioners have  
19 any questions of the three testifiers. And then we  
20 will move to the next group of testifiers.

21 Today our web technician, Sean Murray, will  
22 facilitate public testimony so that I can attend to  
23 what you're saying. Sean will call your name, at which  
24 time your status in Zoom will change from observer to  
25 panelist. The transition will cause your screen to



1 look different. Please don't disconnect. In just a  
2 few seconds you will become visible to the  
3 commissioners.

4 When Sean calls your name you will have two  
5 minutes to speak. A countdown clock will appear on  
6 your screen. At the end of your allotted time you will  
7 be muted. We realize that two minutes is a very brief  
8 time in which to share your comments. We're interested  
9 in what you have to say and urge you to send your  
10 written comments to us via the following email:  
11 [comment@redistricting.wa.gov](mailto:comment@redistricting.wa.gov).

12 Before we begin taking testimony this afternoon, I  
13 want to summarize comments that we have heard about  
14 Spokane County over the course of our meetings in the  
15 last three months. Spokane resident Jeffrey Olsen has  
16 been a particularly active contributor during the  
17 public-comment period, and I'd like to summarize what  
18 we have heard from him already regarding the 5th  
19 Congressional District.

20 Mr. Olsen has asked that commissioners not split  
21 school districts up across precincts and not consider  
22 absentee voters in their redistricting efforts. He  
23 also pointed out that the 3rd Legislative District  
24 extends outside the city lines, incorporating 12 acres  
25 and eight registered voters in what he has labeled an

1 orphan precinct.

2 The 9th Legislative District includes the City of  
3 Cheney, the last democratic stronghold in the county,  
4 according to Mr. Olsen.

5 He gave some advice to Democrats about how to find  
6 additional Democratic voters for Congressional  
7 District 5.

8 Finally, he is interested in being in contact with  
9 others in Spokane County, regardless of party  
10 affiliation, to discuss redistricting topics.

11 With that summary, Sean, let's begin. Please call  
12 the first panel.

13 MR. MURRAY: Thank you so much, Chair.

14 We had a total of 46 individuals to sign up today.  
15 We currently have 23 in the meeting.

16 And we will start off with Michael Miller, if you  
17 don't mind turning on your video and starting your  
18 testimony.

19 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Mr. Miller.

20 MR. M. MILLER: Thank you. Thank you for  
21 this opportunity to speak.

22 The purpose for (indiscernible) join District 5 is  
23 very obvious. One, our agricultural and economy is  
24 linked with contiguous counties, (indiscernible). For  
25 our agriculture extension offices to our FSA and ag

1 programs we are tied to Whitman and Lincoln County.

2 Two, our local health system is trying to  
3 integrate more with Lincoln and, specifically, Spokane  
4 County. East Adams County hospital is working on  
5 telehealth and mobile care with the town of Sprague in  
6 Lincoln County as well as visiting physician services  
7 in Spokane.

8 Three, our school in Ritzville has a cooperative  
9 agreement with Lincoln County, Sprague School District.  
10 And with our broadband and our power coming in  
11 District 5 in the north, the grant-writing process runs  
12 into hurdles with not being in District 5.

13 The economic growth from Ritzville is to the north  
14 and comes from the north. We are slowly becoming a  
15 bedroom community of Spokane and its surrounding areas,  
16 Airway Heights, for Amazon.

17 It is very common sense for us to join north, with  
18 no disrespect to the counties to the south. But our  
19 economic growth and viability lies through Whitman  
20 County and Spokane and Lincoln County. We would love  
21 to be joined to District 5.

22 Thank you.

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Miller. If  
24 you would be willing to stay on, we'll hear from the  
25 others in your panel, and then commissioners will have

1 an opportunity to ask questions. If you would, mute  
2 yourself, please. Thank you.

3 Sean?

4 MR. MURRAY: Next we'll go to Brian  
5 McClatchey, if you can turn on your video and start  
6 your testimony. Thank you.

7 MR. B. McCLATCHEY: Thank you very much to  
8 the members of the commission for taking testimony from  
9 the 5th Congressional District.

10 My name is Brian McClatchey. I am a commissioner  
11 for the Spokane Redistricting Commission, as well.

12 And I only have one comment to bring to your  
13 attention about the 5th Congressional District, and  
14 that is that currently the Confederated Tribes of the  
15 Colville Reservation are split between the 4th and the  
16 5th Congressional District. And we've heard from a  
17 number of folks in the 5th Congressional that it's very  
18 important to keep the reservation boundaries together  
19 into one congressional district.

20 Thank you very much for the outreach that you're  
21 conducting today. This is an excellent process. And  
22 look forward to seeing the maps that result from this  
23 great work. Thank you so much.

24 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. McClatchey.  
25 If you'd be willing to mute yourself and stay on in

1 case there are questions from the commission.

2 Sean?

3 MR. MURRAY: For the last person on this  
4 panel we will have Alma Chacon, if you can turn on your  
5 video and start your testimony.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Ms. Chacon.

7 MS. A. CHACON: Hi. I'm really not in the  
8 5th. So I just wanted to listen in today, if that's  
9 okay.

10 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: You bet.

11 MS. A. CHACON: Thank you.

12 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

13 All right. So I'm going to ask the commissioners  
14 if you have questions for Mr. Miller or Mr. McClatchey.

15 COMMISSIONER FAIN: Excuse me. Quick  
16 question for Mr. McClatchey.

17 You said that you're on the Spokane Redistricting  
18 Commission? Did I hear that right?

19 MR. B. McCLATCHEY: Yep. That's correct.  
20 Yep, the Spokane County Redistricting Committee. Yep.

21 COMMISSIONER FAIN: And I'm just wondering  
22 how that process is going. I was given some new  
23 information recently that if a local -- that I haven't  
24 had a chance to validate, that if a local county's  
25 redistricting process ended in stalemate, that that

1 process may be kicked up to the state redistricting  
2 commission. So I haven't had a chance to do any  
3 research of that on my own. But since you're on the  
4 line and sitting here I thought I'd ask you how things  
5 are going and if that's actually correct.

6 MR. B. McCLATCHEY: It is correct according  
7 to the statute. Our process is moving along very well  
8 and cooperatively and collaboratively at this point.  
9 We all have expressed and are putting into practice a  
10 strong interest that we are able to draw our district  
11 lines right here in Spokane County.

12 So we -- we'll be meeting in a special meeting  
13 this coming week to choose -- hopefully to choose our  
14 vendor who will provide our data analysis and help us  
15 with outreach. And we're looking forward to a  
16 cooperative, collaborative, successful process for five  
17 new districts in Spokane County.

18 COMMISSIONER FAIN: Well, given the timelines  
19 that we're all dealing with with regards to access to  
20 data and things like that, I think we are all very  
21 optimistic and hopeful that you will be drawing those  
22 lines and not anybody else.

23 Thank you. We know how much work that is. So  
24 thank you for your -- for your willingness to serve.

25 MR. B. McCLATCHEY: Thank you for the

1 question.

2 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. McClatchey.

3 Other commissioners, do you have comments or  
4 questions for this panel?

5 (No audible response.)

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific. Thank you.

7 I'd like to excuse the panel.

8 And, Sean, if you would call the next.

9 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely. Our next panel was  
10 going to start off with Lance Beck, Loni Simone -- I'm  
11 sorry if I mispronounce that -- and Yvette Joseph.

12 Lance, if you don't mind turning on your video and  
13 starting your testimony.

14 MR. L. BECK: Hi there. Can you hear me?

15 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Yes. Welcome, Mr. Beck.  
16 Go ahead.

17 MR. L. BECK: Thank you for the time today.  
18 I have the privilege of serving as the president and  
19 CEO of the Greater Spokane Valley Chamber of Commerce.  
20 And I'm here today at the request of some of our state  
21 representatives to testify in regards to the -- both  
22 the 5th District and the 4th District legislative  
23 boundaries here.

24 And so the important piece that I would like to  
25 note today is the maintaining of the City of Spokane

1 Valley and cities of Liberty Lake and Millwood, with  
2 their linkage within commerce side of business here,  
3 maintaining our boundaries, and maintaining the same  
4 legislative districts for those boundaries.

5 Additionally, within the 4th State Legislative  
6 District here regards to maintaining the reach north to  
7 the state park -- or state representatives and state  
8 senator have done considerable work in grant funding  
9 for the state park. And so maintaining that balance  
10 and maintaining that within our legislative district in  
11 the 4th District is incredibly important to us.

12 That we also serve as that gateway to the state  
13 park there through the Oregon corridor and so those  
14 guests traveling up and down, keeping that corridor  
15 linked and together is of utmost importance.

16 And so I think those are the key points that I'd  
17 like to reference. And I'll turn over the time to  
18 someone else.

19 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Beck. If  
20 you would remain here with us, you can mute yourself.  
21 And the commissioners may have questions for you at the  
22 end of your panel. Thank you.

23 MR. L. BECK: Thank you very much.

24 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Next?

25 MR. MURRAY: Next we will have Loni Simone.



1 If you can turn on your video and start your testimony.

2 Thank you.

3 And as that is -- as they're starting their  
4 video --

5 Okay. There we go. Thank you so much.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Ms. Simone.

7 You're welcome to begin.

8 MS. L. SIMONE: Can you hear me?

9 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Yes.

10 MS. L. SIMONE: Oh, okay.

11 Well, I'm a substitute. The person who was  
12 supposed to be here was not about to -- was not going  
13 to be able to be here. So she asked me to be here, so  
14 here I am.

15 I'm very new. I'm trying to learn as much as I  
16 can as fast as I can. So that's all I can say. I'm  
17 here to learn.

18 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Great. Thank you. We're  
19 so glad you're here. Thank you for joining us today.

20 MR. MURRAY: And the last individual on our  
21 panel will be Yvette Joseph.

22 MS. Y. JOSEPH: Hi. Sorry.

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

24 MS. Y. JOSEPH: My -- okay. Great.

25 My name is Yvette Joseph. And I am a member of

1 the Colville Confederated Tribes. I'm a resident of  
2 Spokane County. And interestingly enough, I've been a  
3 former candidate for state representative when I lived  
4 on the reservation for the 7th Legislative District.

5 And the sad part about my campaign was that only  
6 half of my family could vote for me because the  
7 Highway 155 is the dividing line between the 7th and  
8 the 12th Legislative District. And more recently,  
9 when Joe Pakootas, who was a candidate for the 5th  
10 Congressional District, ran for Congress, only about  
11 half of the tribe could vote for him.

12 And this is basically a product of jerrymandering.  
13 It is an effort to dilute the value and the strength of  
14 the Colville tribal membership vote. And it is  
15 something that needs to be corrected.

16 Fifty years ago our tribe faced the termination of  
17 our tribe. And fortunately, our leaders, including my  
18 aunt, Lucy Covington, elected a great team of  
19 individuals to stand against the sale of our  
20 reservation, and we are still strong today.

21 However, we are diluted, and we are losing the  
22 power of our vote by not having one whole, complete  
23 congressional district available to us nor having the  
24 ability to elect individuals to strengthen our vote  
25 from the 7th and the 12th District.



1 Nicolaysen.

2 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

3 Beginning with Ms. Knapp.

4 Sean, can you just repeat the first name again  
5 please.

6 MR. J. KNAPP: John Knapp.

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Oh. Oh, excuse me.

8 Welcome.

9 MR. J. KNAPP: Okay. Thank you.

10 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Please begin.

11 MR. J. KNAPP: Okay. I've been a -- I've  
12 been a citizen of Washington state since the days of  
13 Ronald Reagan. As long as I've been here the 5th  
14 Congressional District and the 4th Congressional  
15 District have been divided and moved around basically  
16 from north to south with a line that divides the state  
17 vertically.

18 So much of what I've heard in previous testimony  
19 is problems that the northern people, Spokane people,  
20 want to be more inclusive with their northern areas and  
21 extending west, Colville Tribe, so forth. And we  
22 certainly have no problem with that.

23 I'm speaking about moving the 4th and 5th dividing  
24 line in a horizontal rather than a vertical way simply  
25 because demographics have changed so much since I was

1 here, since I've been here. The population center of  
2 eastern Washington used to be Spokane, period. Now  
3 it's the Tri-Cities. Now it's Walla Walla. It's the  
4 cities down along the border down here.

5 Economically, even agriculturally, there's a  
6 difference between southern -- southern part of the  
7 state, southeast, and northeast. There is also  
8 transportation centers moving in transportation. And  
9 the population is growing in this area and is a growth  
10 center.

11 And I think it would be as a contiguous -- both  
12 culturally and socially it's a contiguous group of  
13 people in the southern portion of the state as well as  
14 in the northern portion of the state, Moses Lake and  
15 Spokane and all those cities along the interstate as  
16 well as down here along the interstate. Walla Walla  
17 has a new highway that's going to be connecting it.

18 And our economic -- well, I shouldn't downgrade  
19 Walla Walla. But our economic center basically is the  
20 Tri-Cities as it is on the other end coming in from  
21 Prosser and those areas. We are now -- and that's in  
22 the center of this proposed district, and it -- and it  
23 makes people who are neighbors closer to each other.

24 If I wish to --

25 (Allotted time elapsed.)

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Knapp, if  
2 you'd be willing to stay here with us on mute, and then  
3 perhaps the commissioners will have additional  
4 questions for this panel.

5 Sean?

6 MR. MURRAY: Thank you. And next we'll have  
7 Kirsten, if you want to start your testimony.

8 MS. K. NICOLAYSEN: Hi. My name is Kirsten  
9 Nicolaysen. I am speaking to you today both in my  
10 capacity as a professional geologist living in the City  
11 of Walla Walla working at Whitman College and as a  
12 mother of two teenage boys who participate in  
13 high-school sports.

14 First as a geologist, I would like to note that  
15 this -- that it is important to combine the southern  
16 5th Congressional District with the southern 4th  
17 Congressional District by drawing an east-west or  
18 horizontal line.

19 We are coping with climate change. We need to  
20 adapt to climate change. We have a very powerful  
21 configuration with the Snake River, the lower Columbia,  
22 and Walla Walla rivers. We share similar types of  
23 weather. We share water resources. Our ability to  
24 pivot agriculturally to remain strong economically  
25 depends on these lower parts of the -- of the Columbia

1 basin being combined into a single legislative  
2 district.

3 Secondly as a mother, my kids play sports in the  
4 Tri-Cities. I shop for my children's clothes in the  
5 Tri-Cities. I have to rent their musical instruments  
6 in the Tri-Cities. There's a very robust economic tie  
7 between the City of Walla Walla and the Tri-Cities and  
8 our smaller communities in between.

9 Finally, I would like to speak in favor of those  
10 members of the Colville Indian nation and their desire  
11 to be within a single legislative district. I find  
12 that very compelling, and I would like to support --

13 (Allotted time elapsed.)

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. We appreciate  
15 your testimony. If you would stay with us just for a  
16 few more minutes, the commissioners may wish to ask  
17 your panel additional questions.

18 Sean?

19 MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair. And finally  
20 for this panel we have Danielle Garbe Reser.

21 You're currently on mute.

22 MS. D. GARBE RESER: Thank you so much for  
23 the opportunity to join. My name is Danielle Garbe  
24 Reser. I'm joining you from unincorporated parts of  
25 Walla Walla County, where we're on our family farm that

1 has been here for over 160 years.

2 And one of our primary concerns in this region,  
3 certainly associating with my neighbors John and  
4 Kirsten, is that Walla Walla County currently is split  
5 between the 4th and the 5th. So at a minimum we would  
6 like our county to be consolidated.

7 Additionally, the current lines break up the water  
8 basins that are at the heart of our agriculture and  
9 economic viability. It splits off the Snake in the  
10 middle of it so that it doesn't join with the  
11 confluence at the Columbia, and that's key for  
12 transportation, waterway, jobs, and hydropower.

13 In addition, I think it's important as you look at  
14 changing demographics that we consider that the young  
15 people in our region -- we have a largest growing  
16 Latino population in Walla Walla County. As a whole  
17 the county has been approximately 26 percent, and I  
18 know Walla Walla High School is currently graduating  
19 over 42 percent students of color. So we want to make  
20 sure we're not diluting those voices. And combining  
21 with a horizontal district would be one way to connect  
22 our Latinx community across southern and central  
23 eastern Washington.

24 We also saw during the last year of pandemic that  
25 that's our health district. Walla Walla, Benton,



1 Franklin, Yakima, and Kittitas Counties were connected  
2 including with Columbia for our health district. So  
3 connecting us for those reasons in addition to the  
4 shopping and transportation networks is key.

5 Finally, just on distance, the 5th Congressional  
6 District is currently configured as the same size as  
7 the state of Maryland. It takes four hours to get from  
8 Walla Walla to Colville. I agree the tribe should be  
9 united, as should the Yakima Nation. It takes us two  
10 hours to get from Walla Walla to Yakima. So not only  
11 would that be --

12 (Allotted time elapsed.)

13 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Ms. Garbe Reser.  
14 And I'm sorry that you were cut off. Please stay in  
15 the room, and we'll see if the commissioners have  
16 questions for you.

17 So I want to ask the commissioners if you have  
18 questions or comments for the members of this panel.

19 It's -- I'm just going to call by name to make  
20 sure that I'm getting -- getting you.

21 Commissioner Walkinshaw?

22 COMMISSIONER WALKINSHAW: No comments. But  
23 thank you for the very thoughtful testimony. It was  
24 very helpful.

25 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Commissioner Graves?

1 COMMISSIONER GRAVES: No. Thank you all for  
2 testifying.

3 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Commissioner Simms?

4 COMMISSIONER SIMMS: No questions. Thank  
5 you.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Commissioner Fain?

7 COMMISSIONER FAIN: I have no questions. But  
8 I will be there in August. So I look forward to seeing  
9 how the maps are drawn right now firsthand.

10 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific.

11 Thank you for coming and sharings with us today.  
12 And I'd like to excuse the panel and draw the -- and  
13 invite the next.

14 Sean?

15 MR. MURRAY: Thank you so much, Chair. We're  
16 going to start our next panel with Robert Arnold  
17 Johnson, Jay Ball, and Janis Corn.

18 Robert, if you would like to start your testimony,  
19 please.

20 Mr. Johnson, are you there?

21 MR. R. A. JOHNSON: Can you hear me now?

22 MR. MURRAY: Yes, we can.

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

24 MR. R. A. JOHNSON: Thank you.

25 Several of my concerns have been stated quite

1 eloquently already, so I may be very brief.

2 One of my observations of being politically active  
3 in Walla Walla has been that many voters simply can't  
4 identify with the differences of distribution of  
5 political entities, federal by comparison with state by  
6 comparison with county by comparison with city. When  
7 they are disrupted in the way they are, when we have  
8 boundaries for congressional districts running across  
9 or through county boundaries, it just creates a kind of  
10 confusion that I think causes some voters, a  
11 substantial number, to simply tune out. And I'd like  
12 to see this put to an end.

13 Several of the speakers before me have addressed  
14 this in a very coherent way, I think. John Knapp  
15 points out and Daniel Garbe Reser, that if we drew the  
16 district lines in a horizontal way rather than  
17 vertical, we could accomplish the very thing I'm  
18 talking about, which is to have the counties  
19 consolidated as single entities within congressional  
20 districts.

21 So it also, I think, would answer the dismay that  
22 faces the Colville nation in having their territory  
23 divided between two separate congressional districts,  
24 which must be problematic indeed.

25 So that's my comment. I thank you very much for

1 listening to me. And I wish you luck in your  
2 decisions.

3 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Johnson, if  
4 you'll stay with us just for a few minutes as we hear  
5 the next two panelists.

6 Mr. Ball?

7 MR. MURRAY: Mr. Ball, you're on mute.

8 MR. J. BALL: Okay. Sorry about that.

9 Thank you for hearing my testimony today. My name  
10 is Jay Ball. I'm a citizen and business owner located  
11 in Dayton, Washington, Columbia County.

12 I believe Columbia County would be best  
13 represented by a connection with Walla Walla as well as  
14 Pasco, Franklin County. We share a lot of economic  
15 ties, a lot of business going back and forth between  
16 the two counties, and social ties, too, as far as  
17 connections there.

18 So I know you look at the map and it might look  
19 easy to put us in with other Palouse districts, but  
20 this is where the connections are where the business  
21 goes back and forth. People commute for jobs and  
22 things like that, as stated before by our Walla Walla  
23 friend.

24 I also support the reunification of the Colville  
25 tribe.

1                   And that is all for me. Thank you.

2                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Ball. If  
3 you'd be willing to stay with us here --

4                   MR. J. BALL: (Indiscernible).

5                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: -- on mute, and the  
6 commissioners may have more questions for you.

7                   And next is Ms. Corn; is that right?

8                   MR. MURRAY: Janis Corn, if you want to turn  
9 on your video, unmute yourself, and start your  
10 testimony.

11                   We're getting no response after being prompted,  
12 Chair.

13                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Why don't we --

14                   I'm going to then ask the commissioners if they  
15 have additional comments or questions for the panelists  
16 Mr. Johnson or Mr. Ball.

17                   Commissioners -- and so I'm just looking at your  
18 faces. Or why don't you raise your hand if you have a  
19 question. That's probably the best way.

20                   COMMISSIONER WALKINSHAW: I'll comment just  
21 to say I appreciate the comments on unifying the  
22 Colville and Yakima Nations. It's good hear that come  
23 up from many folks in testimony.

24                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. All right.  
25 Then I would like to excuse the panel and call the

1 next, please.

2 MR. MURRAY: Yes. So next we have Brian  
3 Dohe, Emily Tillotson -- I'm sorry if I'm  
4 mispronouncing names -- and Cecile Ervin.

5 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific. Mr. Dohe, I  
6 think, is first.

7 MR. B. DOHE: Hi there. My name is Brian  
8 Dohe. I'm a resident of Walla Walla, Washington.

9 And I, too, want to speak for flipping the 4th and  
10 5th from running vertically to horizontally. I really  
11 believe that Yakima, the Tri-Cities, Walla Walla, and  
12 Dayton, and other communities in the Columbia River  
13 basin and the Snake River region share so much more in  
14 common than running -- for us to be part of the 5th  
15 that runs so far north.

16 Also, I was surprised to learn that Spokane County  
17 has a redistricting commission. In Walla Walla, when I  
18 inquired about that with our election supervisor, I was  
19 told that our three Republican commissioners, county  
20 commissioners, would be doing the redistricting. And  
21 so somehow that doesn't sit well with me. And so  
22 perhaps later someone could send me an email explaining  
23 what really happens at the county level in that Spokane  
24 has a county redistricting commission and Walla Walla  
25 apparently will just simply use our three Republican

1 county commissioners to re- -- do any districting with  
2 school-district support and county districts.

3 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Dohe. We --  
4 let me get with staff on that, and we will look into  
5 that for you.

6 MR. B. DOHE: Thank you.

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: All right. Next is  
8 Mr. Tillotson, I believe. Or is it Ms. Tillotson?  
9 Excuse me. I didn't see your face.

10 MS. E. TILLOTSON: Hi. My name is Emily  
11 Tillotson, and I'm also from Walla Walla, Washington.  
12 I am also on our housing-authority board as a  
13 commissioner.

14 So I wanted to just -- I completely concur with  
15 the comments that my fellow Walla Wallans have made  
16 today. I don't wish to restate all of their excellent  
17 points. But I do think it's interesting to note for  
18 the purposes of the state commissioners that there is  
19 obviously here a real concern as we describe the  
20 mileage and the hours and the rivers and the different  
21 kinds of industry on the rural -- more rural side of  
22 the state, that there's a real concern that rural  
23 concerns are not maybe well understood and that we need  
24 to spend some time explaining our size and our mileage  
25 and things like that.

1           So just an emphasis there that those of us in  
2           rural communities oftentimes don't feel that we are  
3           well understood by some of the more urban parts of the  
4           state. So I would just like to add that.

5           I also wanted to point out, as a county  
6           commissioner, we work in the same common-sense ways  
7           with the communities that are near us, as has already  
8           been articulated. And so having our area split in  
9           these -- between the 4th and the 5th is -- also does  
10          not make a lot of sense for our work as we try to  
11          provide affordable housing and housing access to our  
12          communities, just like the rest of the state are  
13          currently going through substantial statewide housing  
14          problems.

15          So I would encourage the commissioners to consider  
16          the issues for other municipal corporations like  
17          housing authorities as we work to solve this  
18          substantial problem for our state.

19          Thank you so much for your time today. Appreciate  
20          it.

21                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. If you would be  
22          willing to stick around for just a few minutes, the  
23          commissioners may ask additional questions.

24                  Sean?

25                   MR. MURRAY: Yes. And the last person we



1           have on our panel is Cecile Ervin. I'm sorry if I'm  
2           mispronouncing your name. Please, begin your  
3           testimony.

4                       MS. C. ERVIN: That's quite all right.

5           I am Cecile Ervin. And I am also a resident of  
6           Walla Walla.

7           And I appreciate the very succinct and complete  
8           comments that have been made from my other  
9           Walla Wallans, specifically John Knapp and Danielle  
10          Garbe Reser.

11          I have never understood the reasoning behind  
12          splitting the county between the 4th and 5th districts.  
13          So, first of all, I would like to see that addressed.  
14          And an easy way to do that and to solve some of the  
15          other things that we've been talking about is a  
16          horizontal instead of a -- the north and south as it  
17          exists today.

18          And we share a lot of -- with our agriculture, the  
19          wine industry, and becoming a tourist destination. And  
20          I think that linking with Yakima, Tri- -- specifically  
21          Tri-Cities makes sense in that regard, as well. I  
22          think that has not been mentioned.

23          Thank you for letting me share my views, and I'll  
24          release any remaining time on to someone else. Thank  
25          you.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific. Thank you.

2 And so at this time I'd like to ask the  
3 commissioners if you have additional comments or  
4 questions for the panelists. So if you could raise  
5 your hand if you do.

6 (No audible response.)

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: All right. Terrific. So  
8 I'd like to excuse the panel and call the next.

9 Thank you.

10 MR. MURRAY: So our next panel is going to be  
11 Mary Porter, Jack Duane, and Linda Gunshefski.

12 If we want to start off with Mary Porter.

13 MS. M. PORTER: Hello.

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Ms. Porter.

15 MS. M. PORTER: I'm -- let's see start my  
16 video.

17 Okay. I'm Mary Porter. I grew up in Benton  
18 County. I now live in Spokane County up in the north  
19 side. I'm in a very rural area. And I know the people  
20 in the rural areas would like to remain rural. But we  
21 also want to remain allowed to be represented and  
22 heard.

23 And I don't know how I heard about this meeting.  
24 But I think a lot of people are not hearing what's  
25 going on. And if there's a better way that you can

1 reach out to the people of the 5th District, say, you  
2 know, "We're redistricting" -- you know, somehow maybe  
3 I missed it.

4 I am a PCO for Spokane County Precinct 7010. And  
5 I want to make sure I have information for people that  
6 come to me and say, you know, "Where do we go? Where  
7 do we hear about this?" And so if you could let not  
8 just me but let all of us know what's the best way to  
9 hear about what's going on and to check up on progress  
10 on the redistricting.

11 Thank you.

12 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: You bet. Thank you for  
13 your comment, Ms. Porter.

14 And I'm just going to address quickly directly to  
15 say that this is not the last meeting we will have in  
16 the 5th. So stay tuned, and we will continue to update  
17 you on future meetings.

18 Sean?

19 Sean, you're on mute somehow.

20 MR. MURRAY: Oh, I see that. Apologize,  
21 Chair.

22 Next we can go to Jack Duane.

23 MR. J. DONAHUE: I believe you might mean  
24 Jack Donahue, which is me.

25 MR. MURRAY: Yes. I apologize.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Mr. Donahue.

2 MR. J. DONAHUE: No -- no problem. Thank you  
3 very much. I appreciate that. And thank you for  
4 allowing me an opportunity to speak.

5 I wanted to echo the comments of Brian McClatchey  
6 and you got Joseph and others in our goal to  
7 reestablish a boundary which would consolidate the  
8 Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation. I  
9 don't know how or why their tribe was ever split by  
10 congressional-district boundaries, but it had the  
11 effect of significantly disenfranchising and muting  
12 their voices as a collective voting party.

13 And I -- it seems like it's -- unanimously the  
14 comments have been in support of that, so I won't  
15 belabor that point.

16 My other one was --

17 And I want to thank Brian McClatchey, by the way,  
18 for his work on the Spokane redistricting effort.

19 The other concern I wanted to voice -- and I have  
20 no idea of the history of why legislative district  
21 boundaries have gotten to where they are. But I'm a  
22 resident of the 6th, and looking at the boundaries of  
23 the 6th with respect to the boundaries of the 3rd, we  
24 look like a giant cougar that's about to -- shout out  
25 to WSU there -- a giant cougar that's about to swallow

1 the 3rd. We're literally drawn in a C shape around the  
2 3rd at this point.

3 And looking at that makes you kind of scratch your  
4 head. There's got to be -- have some rationale for  
5 winding up that way.

6 But as a member of and resident of the 6th, we're  
7 always concerned that, "How did we get to this? And  
8 why does someone across from me, you know, have to be  
9 in the third?" sort of thing. The boundaries seem  
10 really crazily drawn at this point. So that's kind of  
11 a concern for us, as well.

12 Thank you.

13 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. And also just  
14 to respond quickly, we are -- we will have a meeting  
15 for the 6th District if you want to look on our website  
16 and look at our full meeting schedule.

17 MR. J. DONAHUE: Will do.

18 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Great.

19 Sean?

20 MR. MURRAY: Lastly we have Linda Gunshefski.  
21 I apologize if I'm pronouncing your last name wrong.

22 MS. L. GUNSHEFSKI: Yeah. Linda Gunshefski.  
23 So thank you for having me. I appreciate the  
24 opportunity to share my opinion with the commission.

25 I am talking to you from Walla Walla County. As

1           you may have heard from previous testimony, Walla Walla  
2           County is split between two congressional districts.  
3           That doesn't make any sense. The people who live 15  
4           down -- miles down the road from me are represented by  
5           somebody else. So I would strongly ask the commission  
6           to rectify that situation.

7           The second thing I wanted to mention is that I am  
8           a physician in the area. And I'd like to point out  
9           that medically our community's infrastructure is tied  
10          into the Tri-Cities. The referrals go back and forth  
11          between Pasco, Kennewick, and Richland, and  
12          Walla Walla, so we have a medical-infrastructure  
13          connection with that area.

14          Where I'm going with this, it makes -- my opinion,  
15          it makes more sense that the -- that Walla Walla County  
16          and this area of Washington state be grouped into a  
17          congressional district along with the Tri-Cities,  
18          Sunnyside, Yakima. This is the same opinion that some  
19          of the other people have already presented, that the  
20          southern part of the 5th and 4th Congressional  
21          Districts be put together and then the northern part of  
22          the 5th and 4th Congressional Districts be put  
23          together.

24          And again I'd like to reiterate, it seems  
25          disenfranchising to split that Colville Indian

1 Reservation.

2 I just want to finish up saying I last weekend  
3 drove to Stevens County for a family reunion, and it  
4 was a great drive. But driving up it took five hours.  
5 So Stevens County is in the northern part of the 5th  
6 District. Took us five hours from Walla Walla. It was  
7 just very --

8 (Allotted time elapsed.)

9 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. And we  
10 appreciate your sharing. And please feel free to  
11 submit your full comment in writing.

12 So next I'd like to ask the commissioners if you  
13 have comments or questions for our three panelists, if  
14 you could just raise your hand.

15 (No audible response.)

16 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. I don't see any  
17 questions or comments.

18 Thank you very much for the panelists for joining  
19 us today. And I'd like to excuse this panel and call  
20 the next, please.

21 MR. MURRAY: Next panel we have William  
22 Vaughn, Tolar Bryan, and Sandra Brabb.

23 Tolar Bryan, if you want to begin your testimony.

24 MR. T. BRYAN: Okay. Thank you very much.  
25 I'll make this as quick as I can.

1           One of the things that a lot of people have  
2           trouble is distinguishing between congressional  
3           districts and legislative districts. So gentleman in  
4           the previous panel, I think, was talking about the  
5           congressional district.

6           But any rate --

7           And I would also like to the address the -- the  
8           Spokane County Redistricting Commission is because  
9           we're going from three commissioners to five, and  
10          that's the reason that we're -- it's -- they formed a  
11          committee to do that.

12          And they -- they are moving along. I went to  
13          their first meeting last week, or this past Tuesday.

14          Now, one of the things I wanted to suggest is  
15          that, while I realize that populations -- those numbers  
16          are really the basis for a lot of the redistricting and  
17          determining the boundaries.

18          And I'm not going to address the 5th Congressional  
19          District. I don't really have an issue, but I  
20          understand why some people do have that issue.

21          What I -- what I have an issue with is the  
22          legislative districts. Those -- it seems like in the  
23          past most -- a lot of times those are drawn based on  
24          roadways. And I think that creates some problems with  
25          neighbors being in different legislative districts.



1           And the cases in point that I have is my back  
2           property line happens to be Dist- -- between District 9  
3           and District 4. I'm in District 9. My neighbors down  
4           the hill are in District 4. As I drive west on  
5           Spokane -- or Saltese Lake Road, everything on my right  
6           is District 4, everything on my left is District 5 --  
7           is District 9. And I think we ought to be using  
8           property lines more than roadways to determine  
9           district -- legislative district lines.

10           So that's the primary -- I look forward to when  
11           the mapping tool comes available and I can demonstrate  
12           this more with -- by drawing on a map. And I just look  
13           forward to being able to do that in the future.

14           Thank you.

15           CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Perfect. Thank you.

16           Sean?

17           MR. MURRAY: Sandra Brabb, if you don't mind  
18           turning on your video, unmuting, and starting your  
19           testimony. Thank you.

20           MS. S. BRABB: Hi. My name is Sandy Brabb.  
21           And I want to thank you, first off, for allowing me to  
22           speak today. I live in Pullman, and I am the chair of  
23           the Whitman County Republicans.

24           And I also want to talk about the legislative  
25           districts. So I wanted to speak directly about the 9th

1 Legislative District, which is made up primarily of  
2 county -- Whitman County residents. But it also  
3 includes parts of Spokane County, which was mentioned  
4 earlier today.

5 We would like our representatives to be able to  
6 focus on Whitman County resident issues and not split  
7 their time with Spokane County, which has much more in  
8 common with the City of Spokane than it does with  
9 Whitman County.

10 That's all I needed to say today. But thank you  
11 very much for your time.

12 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you for joining us.  
13 If you would just stay present in the room here for a  
14 moment, and the commissioners can ask questions of your  
15 panel.

16 Sean?

17 MR. MURRAY: The last person we have on this  
18 panel is William Vaughn, if you can turn on your video,  
19 unmute, and start your testimony.

20 MR. W. VAUGHN: I don't have video. I  
21 apologize for that. But I had intended just to listen  
22 today as an observer. So I thank you for the  
23 opportunity, though.

24 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. Thank you  
25 Mr. Vaughn.

1           So next I want to ask the commissioners if you  
2           have questions for -- for the panel.

3                                 (No audible response.)

4                         CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. I see no hands  
5           raised. And so I'd like to excuse the panel and call  
6           the next, please.

7                         MR. MURRAY: The next panel we have is Deena  
8           Bayoumi, Jeffrey Olsen, and Molly Austinson.

9                         CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

10                        MR. MURRAY: Deena, I can see you first, if  
11           you can start your video, unmute, and start your  
12           testimony. Thank you.

13                        MS. D. BAYOUMI: I actually wanted to  
14           reiterate what other people have mentioned regarding  
15           the congressional district, and it -- splitting it up  
16           between --

17                        I apologize. I've got a young one in the  
18           background.

19                        -- the Confederated -- the Colville Confederated  
20           Tribes. Just my feeling that it should be consolidated  
21           within one congressional district in order to -- in  
22           order to facilitate ease of voting.

23                        So that's the only comment that I wanted to make.  
24           Thank you.

25                        CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you very much for

1 being here.

2 Sean?

3 MR. MURRAY: Yes. Next we'll go to Jeffrey  
4 Olsen.

5 MR. J. OLSEN: Greetings, panel.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Mr. Olsen.

7 MR. J. OLSEN: As for the 5th Congressional  
8 District, in '64 when Tom Foley ran, the Republican,  
9 Walt Horan, hometown was in Wenatchee. That tells you  
10 how far north and west it went.

11 I do agree that the Colville Tribe should be  
12 united. There's no reason why Okanogan County is  
13 divided.

14 Now, for other stuff, I -- looking at the state  
15 maps of all the congressional districts, why is Spokane  
16 the only large county that is totally devoted to one  
17 single congressional district? King County doesn't  
18 have a single congressional district that is inside its  
19 boundaries only. And Pierce County has four  
20 congressional districts. That doesn't reflect the  
21 opinion of Pierce County. It's dividing it.

22 Now, I can get into the 3rd and 6th. I just sent  
23 you an email on it. Hopefully you read.

24 And I'll leave the time back for you any  
25 questions.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Olsen. So  
2 please stick around for a few minutes, and we'll see if  
3 there are any questions for you.

4 Sean?

5 MR. MURRAY: Last person on our panel is  
6 Molly Austinson.

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome, Ms. Austinson.

8 MS. M. AUSTINSON: Hello. I apologize for --  
9 hello. I apologize for no video. Rural Internet  
10 connection doesn't allow both video on my end and  
11 yours.

12 I really join today as an educator and a -- of  
13 social studies and geography really to be able to  
14 observe and be able to use this information when  
15 teaching our future voters.

16 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Excellent. Thank you.  
17 We're glad that you're here.

18 So -- and now I want to ask the commission if you  
19 have -- if you would like to ask questions or make  
20 comments for the panel.

21 If you could raise your hand, please.

22 (No audible response.)

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: So I see no questions. So  
24 with that I will excuse the panel -- thanks for being  
25 here -- and call the next. Sean?

1 MR. MURRAY: The last person we have -- and  
2 it's actually Senator Padden. He just showed up to the  
3 meeting. And he will be our final panel. And he will  
4 be a solo panel.

5 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. Welcome,  
6 Senator Padden.

7 SENATOR M. PADDEN: And unmute.

8 Thank you very much. And good to be there and say  
9 hello to the commissioners that I know, former senator  
10 Fain and former representative Graves and my good  
11 friend former representative Walkinshaw. We worked on  
12 some legislation together.

13 But I just wanted to talk briefly about the 4th  
14 Legislative District. And since 1890 we've been part  
15 of Spokane County, so all but one year since statehood.  
16 And, of course, we've been centered -- the heart of  
17 it's been the Spokane Valley. When I was in the House,  
18 elected in 1980, the district went into northeast  
19 Whitman County. And then later the county line was a  
20 border. But we had southeast Spokane County, and we  
21 went up to the Pend Oreille County line.

22 But for the last ten years we've had part of north  
23 Spokane County, all of the Spokane Valley from Havana  
24 to the state line, to the Idaho state line, and down to  
25 the southern portions of the valley. And we're a

1 community of interest here definitely. Got a strong  
2 valley chamber of commerce anchored by the Cities of  
3 Spokane Valley and Liberty Lake and Millwood, and then  
4 we have unincorporated Spokane County.

5 There's been a lot of growth here. You might have  
6 read that Spokane County area is the fifth hottest  
7 real-estate market in the country. And that would be  
8 more growth in the valley than in the City of Spokane.  
9 Of course, we're -- kind of pale in comparison by north  
10 Idaho, which -- Coeur d'Alene's the hottest market in  
11 the country.

12 But we've got, you know, growing school districts.  
13 We've added a new high school in the Central Valley  
14 School District. It's going to start next year. And  
15 just a lot of growth and retail and commercial and  
16 residential.

17 So our ask, I guess, is that you keep the Spokane  
18 Valley, the 4th district, together. We are just  
19 about --

20 (Allotted time elapsed.)

21 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: I apologize, Senator  
22 Padden. Your time has run out. But you are the sole  
23 person on this panel. So we have time for the  
24 commissioners to ask you questions or to provide  
25 comments.





1 another statement? If so, please raise your hand.

2 Yeah. Go ahead, Sean.

3 MR. MURRAY: We had one last person join  
4 after Senator Padden did. Jonnie Bray is currently  
5 promoted.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific.

7 MR. MURRAY: You can start your testimony  
8 whenever you want.

9 MS. J. BRAY: Hi. Sorry. I wasn't expecting  
10 to be on video today. Didn't even comb my hair.

11 I was interested in being a part of this because I  
12 know that when I was around 18 the Colville Reservation  
13 was all one voting district, and we were divided in  
14 half. And I would like to see that changed back so  
15 that we can be -- we can all vote together. I think  
16 that that's consistent with the constitution, which,  
17 you know, would specifically indicate that you're not  
18 supposed to break up, you know, the -- the -- the  
19 group. So we are all one tribe, and you've divided us  
20 in two.

21 And so when they're making considerations for  
22 changing those, I would like to see us changed back to  
23 the way we used to be.

24 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

25 And so, Commissioners, I wonder if you have a

1 question or a comment for Ms. Bray.

2 (No audible response.)

3 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Seeing no hands,  
4 then I would excuse this panel.

5 Sean, do we have additional testifiers who have  
6 entered the room?

7 MR. MURRAY: We have no additional testifiers  
8 who have entered the room. But three testifiers are  
9 raising their hands to speak again.

10 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific. So if you would  
11 bring those three forward, we do have the time to hear  
12 a little more from them.

13 MR. MURRAY: And then, as I said that, two  
14 more hands went up, so I will bring up the first panel  
15 of three.

16 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific. Thank you.  
17 What order, Sean?

18 MR. MURRAY: Whatever order you like to go  
19 in, Chair. I could just pick if you want.

20 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Sure. I just can't see  
21 their names.

22 MR. MURRAY: Okay.

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: So if you would pick for  
24 me, that would be great. Thank you.

25 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely. We'll start off

1 with Danielle.

2 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

3 MS. D. GARBE RESER: Thank you very much  
4 again for the chance to add on.

5 Would just like to note that -- on the farming  
6 piece that the agriculture and labor-market trends are  
7 quite consistent across southern eastern Washington.  
8 So that is a tie between Walla Walla, Franklin, Benton,  
9 and Yakima Counties in particular, as also came up  
10 around the wine industry in particular earlier. So I  
11 wanted to be sure to associate myself with those  
12 comments, as well.

13 Thank you.

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Great. Thank you.

15 Sean?

16 MR. MURRAY: Next we're going to go to  
17 Jeffrey Olsen.

18 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome back, Mr. Olsen.

19 MR. J. OLSEN: It's great to be back.

20 Now, let me answer a couple questions.

21 The reason why the 6th is like a C surrounding the  
22 3rd is because in '90 -- 1995 they redrew the district,  
23 and the Democrats took all of the center, which forced  
24 the 6th to take what's left, which is reason why it  
25 created the C-like shape. I would like to get rid of

1           it, but that's one of the things that needs to be  
2           addressed.

3           Another thing is, because they have drawn the C,  
4           the northern part generally votes Republican. The  
5           southern part of the 6th votes solid Democrat. And as  
6           I see it, their district Democrats, if they want to  
7           increase their margin in the ballot, will have to move  
8           south. And in 2001 and 2011 they -- we had moved  
9           themselves.

10           But I don't want a spike. I want a straight line,  
11           like the 29th Avenue is a perfect example of a --  
12           making a straight line.

13           And I'll yield back the rest of the time.

14           CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

15           Appreciate your detailed comments.

16           MR. J. OLSEN: Okay.

17           MR. MURRAY: And lastly for this panel will  
18           be Tolar Bryan.

19           CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Mr. Bryan, go ahead.

20           MR. T. BRYAN: Yeah. I had to go through  
21           what I had to say pretty quickly the last time. So I  
22           just want to explain a little bit further.

23           As I'm traveling west, for instance, on Saltese  
24           Lake Road, like I said, and it turns into 32nd Avenue  
25           all the way to Highway 27, everything on the left is

1           9th District right now, 9th Legislative District;  
2           everything on the right is 4th District. Doesn't make  
3           any sense. And the same thing applies for precincts,  
4           as well.

5           Likewise, over on the western side of the county  
6           Paradise Road is the -- the boundary between the 9th  
7           and the 6th.

8           And consequently that's why I'm proposing that  
9           boundaries should be based more on property lines than  
10          on roads that are residential. Don't have an issue  
11          with them being major thoroughfares, such as I-90 or  
12          Highway 195 or Highway 27. You know, that -- those  
13          make sense because there's no access on both sides.

14          But when you got somebody that lives right across  
15          the street from you that's in a different district than  
16          you are, it's -- it just -- there's nothing in --  
17          they've got stuff in common. There's no reason for  
18          them to be in separate districts. That's the primary  
19          thing.

20          And like I said, I think a lot of what -- using  
21          property lines applies to precinct boundaries, even  
22          though I know that that's outside of y'all's purview  
23          per se.

24          So that's basically what I wanted to say.

25          I do agree with some of the other comments

1           regarding Congressional District 5 and the Colville  
2           Reservation and stuff down south -- way south in the  
3           9th District. 9th District runs from my house all the  
4           way down to the Oregon state line. It's a long ways.

5                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Bryan.

6                   Oh, I'm sorry. I didn't mean to interrupt you.

7                   MR. T. BRYAN: No. I'm good.

8                   CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. All right. I think  
9           that's the panel. Is that right, Sean?

10                  MR. MURRAY: That is the panel. We have one  
11           last person who had raised their hand.

12                  CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay.

13                  MR. MURRAY: Kirsten Nicolaysen, go ahead.

14                  MS. K. NICOLAYSEN: Hi.

15                  CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome back.

16                  MS. K. NICOLAYSEN: Kirsten Nicolaysen,  
17           geologist, educator. I grew up on a ranch in Wyoming.  
18           Mother.

19                  So, again, I just want to echo the comments of  
20           many of us living in Walla Walla by asking that you  
21           really recognize all of the economic, social, and  
22           physical geography factors that would really speak very  
23           largely toward combining the southern 4th and the  
24           southern 5th Congressional Districts.

25                  I -- my colleague -- my fellow Walla Wallan Brian

1 Dohe spoke to a sense of fairness by saying that  
2 Spokane had a redistricting commission but that the  
3 redistricting advice in Walla Walla could be very  
4 biased because all of the representatives are from one  
5 party. As an educator I know that partisanship  
6 backfires any time that comes into a context that  
7 serves all people.

8 When I am teaching I need to serve all my  
9 students. I really appreciate and respect the work of  
10 this redistricting commission because you are  
11 representing all of us. And I feel that there's a  
12 sense of fairness.

13 So thank you for your work. And I hope that the  
14 comments today are taken very seriously. Thank you.

15 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

16 So I apologize. Sean, I think I've gotten a little  
17 bit lost. We had four on that panel; is that right?

18 MR. MURRAY: We had three originally. They  
19 were demoted. And there was -- Kirsten had raised her  
20 hand. Yvette Joseph has also raised her hand, so I  
21 brought her up, as well.

22 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Great. So we have  
23 two on this panel. I just want to make sure I know  
24 when I'm going to ask for questions. Okay. Great.

25 MR. MURRAY: Okay. So, Yvette Joseph, if you

1 wanted to go ahead again.

2 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome. Ms. Joseph, I  
3 think you're on mute. There you go.

4 MS. Y. JOSEPH: Thank you.

5 I -- I wanted to express my appreciation to  
6 probably the 14 or 15 individuals who have supported  
7 keeping the Colville Reservation intact in terms of  
8 redistricting. That is very much appreciated.

9 And I know that the commission work is very  
10 important. And it's great to have bipartisan  
11 partnerships, and I applaud each of you for that.

12 I have myself formerly worked for Dan Evans when I  
13 was United States senator with the Senate Committee on  
14 Indian Affairs. And he was very much a supporter of  
15 the history of Washington state, of the history of  
16 tribes working together with our neighbors. And I  
17 think that if we can respect our boundary lines, I  
18 think that's very important in terms of our ability to  
19 participate in a democracy of this country.

20 So I just want to express my appreciation to each  
21 of you and to Sarah. I know you've got some native  
22 roots, as well. So we're proud you for serving as  
23 Chair.

24 And -- but I just, you know, want to say that, you  
25 know, it's crucial that Native Americans and Alaska



1 natives have an equal voice in redistricting. And it  
2 helps to give the voters the ability to elect  
3 candidates of their choice.

4 And, you know, myself and then my fellow tribal  
5 member, Joe Pakootas, when he ran for congressional  
6 office, it just -- it's just hard to not be able to  
7 support somebody from your community. So --

8 But anyway, thank you today for listening to our  
9 concerns. And good luck in the process. I appreciate  
10 all that you do, each one of you. Thank you.

11 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

12 And so, Sean, does that conclude this panel?

13 MR. MURRAY: It does, Chair.

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: So, Commissioners,  
15 comments? Questions? You raise your hand.

16 (No audible response.)

17 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. I see no hands  
18 raised.

19 But I do want to thank you, Ms. Joseph, for your  
20 kind words. I appreciate hearing that. Thank you.

21 All right. So I'd like to excuse this panel.  
22 And -- and, Sean, do we have additional folks who would  
23 like to continue -- to have another chance to testify?

24 MR. MURRAY: I'm seeing no new individuals in  
25 the meeting and no more raised hands, Chair.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Terrific. All right.

2 So with that I -- I -- what I want to do is  
3 adjourn the meeting. All those who were -- who signed  
4 up to testify were able to do so. And we're so  
5 thankful to you members of the public who have joined  
6 us to help us to draw our WA, as Commissioner Simms so  
7 aptly said in the video.

8 And I do want to also acknowledge the members of  
9 the commission, all of the voting commissioners. Thank  
10 you for spending the time to be here today. I  
11 recognize it's a big commitment. And thank you for  
12 giving us this time on your Saturday and all of the  
13 time that you give on each day of the week to be  
14 prepared for these meetings. We appreciate you. Thank  
15 you for your leadership.

16 I also want to acknowledge those people who are  
17 here providing Spanish language interpretation today to  
18 ensure that we provide access to as many of Washington  
19 state residents as we can. Thank you.

20 I'd also like to acknowledge our American Sign  
21 Language interpreters, as well. Thank you for being  
22 here and providing this service today.

23 I would like to thank our court reporter, who's  
24 here taking minutes for the record.

25 I would also like to acknowledge the Washington

1 State Redistricting Commission staff who have spent  
2 quite a lot of hours preparing for this meeting and  
3 providing support services so that we can be here  
4 together.

5 And I would also like to acknowledge the  
6 Washington State Redistricting Commission caucus staff.  
7 Thank you for all that you've done to help prepare us.

8 And I look forward to seeing you all on Monday.  
9 And I -- I would like to call this meeting to a close.  
10 It's now adjourned. Thank you.

11 (Proceedings concluded at 2:12 p.m.)

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

C E R T I F I C A T E

I, SUE E. GARCIA, a Certified Court Reporter in and for the State of Washington, residing at Tacoma, authorized to administer oaths and affirmations pursuant to RCW 5.28.010, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing proceedings were taken before me on the 22nd of May, 2021, and thereafter transcribed by me by means of computer-aided transcription, that the transcript is a full, true, and complete transcript of said proceedings, consisting of pages 1 through 60;

That as a CCR in this state, I am bound by the Rules of Conduct as Codified in WAC 308-14-130; that court reporting arrangements and fees in this case are offered to all parties on equal terms;

That I am not a relative, employee, attorney, or counsel of any party to this action or relative or employee of any such attorney or counsel, and I am not financially interested in the said action or the outcome thereof;

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this June 4, 2021.

*Sue E. Garcia*



SUE E. GARCIA, CCR, RMR  
WA Lic. No. 2781

| <b>A</b>   |   |   |  |   |
|--|---|---|--|---|
| <p><b>ability</b> 18:24 22:23<br/>56:18 57:2</p> <p><b>able</b> 6:13,15,18 8:2<br/>14:10 17:13 19:20<br/>41:13 42:5 45:13<br/>45:14 57:6 58:4</p> <p><b>absentee</b> 9:22</p> <p><b>Absolutely</b> 15:9<br/>19:24 50:25</p> <p><b>access</b> 6:25 14:19<br/>32:11 53:13 58:18</p> <p><b>accomplish</b> 27:17</p> <p><b>acknowledge</b> 58:8<br/>58:16,20,25 59:5</p> <p><b>acres</b> 9:24</p> <p><b>action</b> 60:16,18</p> <p><b>active</b> 9:16 27:2</p> <p><b>Adams</b> 11:4</p> <p><b>adapt</b> 22:20</p> <p><b>add</b> 32:4 51:4</p> <p><b>added</b> 8:9 47:13</p> <p><b>addition</b> 24:13 25:3</p> <p><b>additional</b> 8:9 10:6<br/>22:3 23:17 29:15<br/>32:23 34:3 48:17<br/>48:24 50:5,7<br/>57:22</p> <p><b>Additionally</b> 16:5<br/>24:7</p> <p><b>address</b> 6:7,15<br/>35:14 40:7,18</p> <p><b>addressed</b> 27:13<br/>33:13 52:2</p> <p><b>adjourn</b> 58:3</p> <p><b>adjourned</b> 59:10</p> <p><b>admin@capitolp...</b><br/>1:24</p> <p><b>administer</b> 60:4</p> <p><b>ADMINISTRAT...</b><br/>2:11</p> <p><b>advice</b> 10:5 55:3</p> <p><b>Affairs</b> 56:14</p> <p><b>affiliation</b> 10:10</p> | <p><b>affirmations</b> 60:4</p> <p><b>affordable</b> 32:11</p> <p><b>afternoon</b> 5:8 8:7<br/>9:12</p> <p><b>ag</b> 10:25</p> <p><b>ago</b> 18:16</p> <p><b>agree</b> 25:8 44:11<br/>53:25</p> <p><b>agreed</b> 6:21</p> <p><b>agreement</b> 11:9</p> <p><b>agricultural</b> 10:23</p> <p><b>agriculturally</b> 21:5<br/>22:24</p> <p><b>agriculture</b> 10:25<br/>24:8 33:18 51:6</p> <p><b>ahead</b> 15:16 49:2<br/>52:19 54:13 56:1</p> <p><b>Airway</b> 11:16</p> <p><b>Alaska</b> 56:25</p> <p><b>allotted</b> 2:19 9:6<br/>19:10 21:25 23:13<br/>25:12 39:8 47:20</p> <p><b>allow</b> 45:10</p> <p><b>allowed</b> 2:19 34:21</p> <p><b>allowing</b> 36:4<br/>41:21</p> <p><b>Alma</b> 3:8 13:4</p> <p><b>Amazon</b> 11:16</p> <p><b>American</b> 58:20</p> <p><b>Americans</b> 56:25</p> <p><b>analysis</b> 14:14</p> <p><b>anchored</b> 47:2</p> <p><b>answer</b> 27:21 51:20</p> <p><b>anybody</b> 14:22</p> <p><b>anyway</b> 57:8</p> <p><b>apologize</b> 35:20,25<br/>37:21 42:21 43:17<br/>45:8,9 47:21<br/>55:16</p> <p><b>apparently</b> 30:25</p> <p><b>appear</b> 9:5 48:12</p> <p><b>APPEARANCES</b><br/>2:1</p> <p><b>applaud</b> 56:11</p> | <p><b>applies</b> 53:3,21</p> <p><b>appreciate</b> 23:14<br/>29:21 32:19 33:7<br/>36:3 37:23 39:10<br/>52:15 55:9 57:9<br/>57:20 58:14</p> <p><b>appreciated</b> 56:8</p> <p><b>appreciation</b> 56:5<br/>56:20</p> <p><b>approximately</b><br/>24:17</p> <p><b>April</b> 2:5 7:12</p> <p><b>aptly</b> 58:7</p> <p><b>area</b> 7:21 21:9 32:8<br/>34:19 38:8,13,16<br/>47:6</p> <p><b>areas</b> 11:15 20:20<br/>21:21 34:20</p> <p><b>Arnold</b> 26:16</p> <p><b>arrangements</b><br/>60:13</p> <p><b>articulated</b> 32:8</p> <p><b>asked</b> 9:20 17:13</p> <p><b>asking</b> 54:20</p> <p><b>ASSISTANT</b> 2:11</p> <p><b>associate</b> 51:11</p> <p><b>associating</b> 24:3</p> <p><b>attend</b> 8:22</p> <p><b>attention</b> 12:13</p> <p><b>attorney</b> 60:15,17</p> <p><b>audible</b> 15:5 19:17<br/>34:6 39:15 43:3<br/>45:22 48:18 50:2<br/>57:16</p> <p><b>audio</b> 2:18,18,20</p> <p><b>August</b> 7:14 26:8</p> <p><b>Augustine</b> 2:2 3:3<br/>4:15 5:8,9,18<br/>10:19 11:23 12:24<br/>13:6,10,12 15:2,6<br/>15:15 16:19,24<br/>17:6,9,18,23<br/>19:11,18 20:2,7<br/>20:10 22:1 23:14</p> | <p>25:13,25 26:3,6<br/>26:10,23 28:3<br/>29:2,5,13,24 30:5<br/>31:3,7 32:21 34:1<br/>34:7,14 35:12<br/>36:1 37:13,18<br/>39:9,16 41:15<br/>42:12,24 43:4,9<br/>43:25 44:6 45:1,7<br/>45:16,23 46:5<br/>47:21 48:16,19<br/>49:6,24 50:3,10<br/>50:16,20,23 51:2<br/>51:14,18 52:14,19<br/>54:5,8,12,15<br/>55:15,22 56:2<br/>57:11,14,17 58:1</p> <p><b>aunt</b> 18:18</p> <p><b>Austinson</b> 4:6 43:8<br/>45:6,7,8</p> <p><b>authorities</b> 32:17</p> <p><b>authorized</b> 60:3</p> <p><b>available</b> 18:23<br/>41:11</p> <p><b>Avenue</b> 52:11,24</p> <p><b>average</b> 7:19 48:13</p> <p><b>aware</b> 7:9</p> | <p>53:9</p> <p><b>basically</b> 18:12<br/>20:15 21:19 53:24</p> <p><b>basin</b> 23:1 30:13</p> <p><b>basins</b> 24:8</p> <p><b>basis</b> 40:16</p> <p><b>Bayoumi</b> 4:4 43:8<br/>43:13</p> <p><b>Beck</b> 3:9 15:10,14<br/>15:15,17 16:19,23<br/>19:15</p> <p><b>becoming</b> 11:14<br/>33:19</p> <p><b>bedroom</b> 11:15</p> <p><b>Beginning</b> 20:3</p> <p><b>belabor</b> 36:15</p> <p><b>believe</b> 28:12 30:11<br/>31:8 35:23</p> <p><b>Benton</b> 24:25 34:17<br/>51:8</p> <p><b>best</b> 6:11,17 7:5<br/>28:12 29:19 35:8</p> <p><b>bet</b> 13:10 35:12</p> <p><b>better</b> 34:25</p> <p><b>biased</b> 55:4</p> <p><b>big</b> 58:11</p> <p><b>bipartisan</b> 56:10</p> <p><b>bit</b> 52:22 55:17</p> <p><b>board</b> 31:12</p> <p><b>border</b> 19:4 21:4<br/>46:20</p> <p><b>bottom</b> 5:20</p> <p><b>bound</b> 60:11</p> <p><b>boundaries</b> 12:18<br/>15:23 16:3,4 27:8<br/>27:9 36:10,21,22<br/>36:23 37:9 40:17<br/>44:19 53:9,21</p> <p><b>boundary</b> 36:7<br/>53:6 56:17</p> <p><b>boys</b> 22:12</p> <p><b>Brabb</b> 3:24 39:22<br/>41:17,20,20</p> <p><b>BRADY</b> 2:6</p> |
| <b>B</b>   |   |   |  |   |
| <p><b>B</b> 12:7 13:19 14:6<br/>14:25 30:7 31:6</p> <p><b>back</b> 28:15,21<br/>38:10 41:1 44:24<br/>49:14,22 51:18,19<br/>52:13 54:15</p> <p><b>backfires</b> 55:6</p> <p><b>background</b> 43:18</p> <p><b>balance</b> 16:9</p> <p><b>balanced</b> 7:24</p> <p><b>Ball</b> 3:16 26:17<br/>28:6,7,8,10 29:2,4<br/>29:16</p> <p><b>ballot</b> 52:7</p> <p><b>based</b> 7:15 40:23</p>  |   |   |  |   |

|   |   |   |   |   |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| <b>Bray</b> 4:8 49:4,9<br>50:1  | <b>Cecile</b> 3:19 30:4<br>33:1,5   | <b>chamber</b> 15:19<br>47:2                                | 18:14 19:5 20:21<br>23:10 25:8 27:22<br>28:24 29:22 36:8<br>38:25 43:19 44:11<br>49:12 54:1 56:7  | 13:21 14:18 25:21<br>25:22,25 26:1,3,4<br>26:6,7 29:20<br>31:13 32:6 48:3,4<br>58:6   |
| <b>break</b> 2:18 24:7<br>49:18   | <b>Census</b> 7:11  | <b>chance</b> 13:24 14:2<br>51:4 57:23                      | <b>comb</b> 49:10   | <b>commissioners</b><br>5:14 6:9 7:2 8:18<br>9:3,20 11:25<br>13:13 15:3 16:21<br>19:14 22:3 23:16<br>25:15,17 29:6,14<br>29:17 30:19,20<br>31:1,18 32:15,23<br>34:3 39:12 40:9<br>42:14 43:1 46:9<br>47:24 48:1 49:25<br>57:14 58:9 |
| <b>Brian</b> 3:7,17 12:4<br>12:10 30:2,7 36:5<br>36:17 54:25                      | <b>center</b> 21:1,10,19<br>21:22 51:23   | <b>change</b> 8:24 19:1,1<br>22:19,20                       | <b>combine</b> 22:15  | <b>commitment</b> 58:11   |
| <b>brief</b> 9:7 27:1   | <b>centered</b> 46:16   | <b>changed</b> 20:25<br>49:14,22                            | <b>combined</b> 23:1  | <b>committee</b> 13:20<br>40:11 56:13   |
| <b>briefly</b> 46:13  | <b>centers</b> 21:8   | <b>changing</b> 24:14<br>49:22                              | <b>combining</b> 24:20<br>54:23   | <b>common</b> 11:17<br>30:14 42:8 53:17   |
| <b>bring</b> 6:13 12:12<br>50:11,14   | <b>central</b> 24:22 47:13  | <b>check</b> 35:9   | <b>come</b> 29:22 35:6<br>48:22   | <b>common-sense</b><br>32:6   |
| <b>Bristol</b> 1:22   | <b>CEO</b> 15:19  | <b>Cheney</b> 10:3  | <b>comes</b> 11:14 41:11<br>55:6  | <b>COMMUNICAT...</b><br>2:8,10  |
| <b>broadband</b> 11:10  | <b>certainly</b> 6:16<br>20:22 24:3   | <b>children's</b> 23:4                                      | <b>coming</b> 11:10 14:13<br>21:20 26:11  | <b>communities</b> 6:6<br>8:14 23:8 30:12<br>32:2,7,12  |
| <b>brought</b> 55:21  | <b>Certified</b> 5:3 60:2   | <b>choice</b> 57:3  | <b>comment</b> 3:5 4:3<br>8:17 12:12 27:25<br>29:20 35:13 39:11<br>43:23 48:2 50:1  | <b>community</b> 7:23<br>8:1 11:15 24:22<br>47:1 48:9 57:7  |
| <b>Bryan</b> 3:23 4:11<br>39:22,23,24 52:18<br>52:19,20 54:5,7                    | <b>certify</b> 60:5   | <b>choose</b> 5:22,23,25<br>14:13,13                        | <b>comment@redist...</b><br>9:11  | <b>communities</b> 6:6<br>8:14 23:8 30:12<br>32:2,7,12  |
| <b>Bureau</b> 7:12  | <b>Chacon</b> 3:8 13:4,6<br>13:7,11   | <b>cities</b> 16:1 21:4,15<br>47:2                          | <b>comments</b> 6:10,12<br>6:14 9:8,10,13<br>15:3 19:16,19<br>25:18,22 29:15,21<br>31:15 33:8 34:3<br>36:5,14 39:13,17<br>45:20 47:25 51:12<br>52:15 53:25 54:19<br>55:14 57:15 | <b>community's</b> 38:9   |
| <b>business</b> 16:2 28:10<br>28:15,20  | <b>chair</b> 4:15 5:8,9,18<br>6:4 10:13,19<br>11:23 12:24 13:6<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1 | <b>city</b> 9:24 10:2 15:25<br>22:10 23:7 27:6<br>42:8 47:8 | <b>commerce</b> 15:19<br>16:2 47:2  | <b>commute</b> 28:21  |
| <hr/> <b>C</b> <hr/>  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>citizen</b> 20:12 28:10                                  | <b>commercial</b> 47:15   | <b>comparison</b> 27:5,6<br>27:6 47:9   |
| <b>C 33:4 37:1 51:21</b><br>52:3 60:1,1   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>clock</b> 9:5  | <b>commission</b> 1:2<br>5:10 6:21 8:2,3,3<br>12:8,11 13:1,18<br>14:2 30:17,24<br>37:24 38:5 40:8<br>45:18 48:17 55:2<br>55:10 56:9 58:9<br>59:1,6                              | <b>compelling</b> 23:12   |
| <b>C-103</b> 1:22   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>close</b> 59:9   | <b>commissioner</b> 2:3,4<br>2:5,6 12:10 13:15  | <b>complete</b> 18:22<br>33:7 60:9  |
| <b>C-like</b> 51:25   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>closer</b> 21:23   |   | <b>completely</b> 31:14   |
| <b>call</b> 8:23 10:11 15:8<br>19:22 25:19 29:25<br>34:8 39:19 43:5<br>45:25 59:9 | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>Closing</b> 4:15   |   | <b>computer-aided</b><br>60:8   |
| <b>calls</b> 9:4  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>clothes</b> 23:4   |   | <b>concern</b> 31:19,22<br>36:19 37:11  |
| <b>campaign</b> 18:5  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>Codified</b> 60:12                                       |   |   |
| <b>Canada</b> 19:4  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>Coeur</b> 47:10  |   |   |
| <b>candidate</b> 18:3,9   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>coherent</b> 27:14                                       |   |   |
| <b>candidates</b> 57:3  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>collaborative</b> 14:16                                  |   |   |
| <b>capacity</b> 22:10   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>collaboratively</b><br>14:8                              |   |   |
| <b>Capitol</b> 1:21   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>colleague</b> 54:25                                      |   |   |
| <b>care</b> 11:5  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>collective</b> 36:12                                     |   |   |
| <b>case</b> 13:1 60:13  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>collectively</b> 19:6                                    |   |   |
| <b>cases</b> 41:1   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>College</b> 22:11  |   |   |
| <b>caucus</b> 59:6  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>color</b> 24:19  |   |   |
| <b>cause</b> 5:24 8:25  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>Columbia</b> 22:21,25<br>24:11 25:2 28:11<br>28:12 30:12 |   |   |
| <b>causes</b> 27:10   | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 | <b>Colville</b> 12:15 18:1                                  |   |   |
| <b>CCR</b> 1:17 60:11,23  | <b>Civil</b> 11:11,12 12:13,14<br>13:10,12 15:2,6<br>15:15 16:19,24<br>17:6,9,18,23<br>19:11,18 20:2,7<br>20:10 22:1 23:14<br>23:19 25:13,25<br>26:3,6,10,15,23<br>28:3 29:2,5,12,13<br>29:24 30:5 31:3,7<br>32:21 34:1,7,14<br>35:12,21 36:1<br>37:13,18 39:9,16<br>41:15,22 42:12,24<br>43:4,9,25 44:6<br>45:1,7,16,23 46:5<br>47:21 48:16,19<br>49:6,24 50:3,10<br>50:16,19,20,23<br>51:2,14,18 52:14<br>52:19 54:5,8,12<br>54:15 55:15,22<br>56:2,23 57:11,13<br>57:14,17,25 58:1                                 |   |   |   |
|   | <b>Chairwoman</b> 2:2<br>3:3  |   |   |   |
|   | <b>challenging</b> 7:10   |   |   |   |

|                             |                           |                           |                            |                              |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| <b>concerned</b> 37:7       | <b>considerations</b>     | 30:19,23,24 31:1          | <b>deadline</b> 7:4        | <b>Dist-</b> 41:2            |
| <b>concerns</b> 6:7 24:2    | 49:21                     | 31:2 32:5 33:12           | <b>dealing</b> 14:19       | <b>distance</b> 25:5         |
| 26:25 31:23 57:9            | <b>consistent</b> 49:16   | 34:18,18 35:4             | <b>decade</b> 7:16         | <b>distinguishing</b> 40:2   |
| <b>conclude</b> 57:12       | 51:7                      | 37:25 38:2,15             | <b>decisions</b> 28:2      | <b>distribution</b> 27:4     |
| <b>concluded</b> 59:11      | <b>consisting</b> 1:11    | 39:3,5 40:8 41:23         | <b>Deena</b> 4:4 43:7,10   | <b>district</b> 1:8 7:17 8:7 |
| <b>concur</b> 31:14         | 60:10                     | 42:2,2,3,6,7,9            | <b>definitely</b> 47:1     | 8:12 9:19,23 10:2            |
| <b>conduct</b> 7:1 60:12    | <b>consolidate</b> 36:7   | 44:12,16,17,19,21         | <b>degree</b> 7:17         | 10:7,22 11:9,11              |
| <b>conducting</b> 12:21     | <b>consolidated</b> 24:6  | 46:15,19,19,20,21         | <b>deliberate</b> 6:16     | 11:12,21 12:9,13             |
| <b>Confederated</b>         | 27:19 43:20               | 46:23 47:4,6 53:5         | <b>democracy</b> 56:19     | 12:16,19 14:10               |
| 12:14 18:1 36:8             | <b>constitution</b> 49:16 | <b>county's</b> 13:24     | <b>Democrat</b> 52:5       | 15:22,22 16:6,10             |
| 43:19,19                    | <b>contact</b> 10:8       | <b>couple</b> 51:20       | <b>democratic</b> 10:3,6   | 16:11 18:4,8,10              |
| <b>configuration</b>        | <b>context</b> 55:6       | <b>course</b> 9:14 46:16  | <b>Democrats</b> 10:5      | 18:23,25 19:3                |
| 22:21                       | <b>contiguous</b> 10:24   | 47:9                      | 51:23 52:6                 | 20:14,15 21:22               |
| <b>configured</b> 25:6      | 21:11,12                  | <b>court</b> 1:22 5:3     | <b>demographics</b>        | 22:16,17 23:2,11             |
| <b>confluence</b> 24:11     | <b>continue</b> 35:16     | 58:23 60:2,12             | 20:25 24:14                | 24:21,25 25:2,6              |
| <b>confusion</b> 27:10      | 57:23                     | <b>cover</b> 7:21         | <b>demonstrate</b> 41:11   | 27:16 35:1 36:20             |
| <b>Congress</b> 18:10       | <b>continued</b> 4:1      | <b>Covington</b> 18:18    | <b>demoted</b> 55:19       | 37:15 38:17 39:6             |
| <b>congressional</b> 1:8    | <b>contributor</b> 9:16   | <b>crazily</b> 37:10      | <b>depends</b> 22:25       | 40:5,19 41:2,3,3,4           |
| 7:17,19 8:7 9:19            | <b>cooperative</b> 11:8   | <b>created</b> 51:25      | <b>describe</b> 31:19      | 41:6,6,7,9,9 42:1            |
| 10:6 12:9,13,16             | 14:16                     | <b>creates</b> 27:9 40:24 | <b>desire</b> 23:10        | 43:15,21 44:8,17             |
| 12:17,19 18:10,23           | <b>cooperatively</b> 14:8 | <b>credible</b> 6:23      | <b>destination</b> 33:19   | 44:18 46:14,18               |
| 20:14,14 22:16,17           | <b>COORDINATOR</b>        | <b>crucial</b> 56:25      | <b>detailed</b> 52:15      | 47:14,18 49:13               |
| 25:5 27:8,19,23             | 2:9                       | <b>culturally</b> 21:12   | <b>determine</b> 41:8      | 51:22 52:6 53:1,1            |
| 38:2,17,20,22               | <b>coping</b> 22:19       | <b>current</b> 24:7       | <b>determining</b> 40:17   | 53:2,15 54:1,3,3             |
| 40:2,5,18 43:15             | <b>Corn</b> 26:17 29:7,8  | <b>currently</b> 10:15    | <b>devoted</b> 44:16       | <b>districting</b> 31:1      |
| 43:21 44:7,15,17            | <b>corporations</b> 32:16 | 12:14 23:21 24:4          | <b>difference</b> 21:6     | <b>districts</b> 7:18,20,20  |
| 44:18,20 54:1,24            | <b>correct</b> 13:19 14:5 | 24:18 25:6 32:13          | <b>differences</b> 27:4    | 7:24 9:21 14:17              |
| 57:5                        | 14:6                      | 49:4                      | <b>different</b> 9:1 31:20 | 16:4 27:8,20,23              |
| <b>congressional-dis...</b> | <b>corrected</b> 18:15    | <b>cut</b> 19:12 25:14    | 40:25 53:15                | 28:19 31:2 33:12             |
| 36:10                       | <b>corridor</b> 16:13,14  | <b>cycle</b> 5:12 7:10    | <b>digital</b> 2:10,18     | 38:2,21,22 40:3,3            |
| <b>connect</b> 24:21        | <b>cougar</b> 36:24,25    |                           | <b>dilute</b> 18:13        | 40:22,25 41:25               |
| <b>connected</b> 25:1       | <b>counsel</b> 60:16,17   | <b>D</b>                  | <b>diluted</b> 18:21       | 44:15,20 47:12               |
| <b>connecting</b> 21:17     | <b>countdown</b> 9:5      | <b>D</b> 23:22 43:13 51:3 | <b>diluting</b> 24:20      | 53:18 54:24                  |
| 25:3                        | <b>counties</b> 10:24     | <b>d'Alene's</b> 47:10    | <b>directly</b> 35:14      | <b>divided</b> 20:15         |
| <b>connection</b> 28:13     | 11:18 25:1 27:18          | <b>Dan</b> 56:12          | 41:25                      | 27:23 44:13 49:13            |
| 38:13 45:10                 | 28:16 51:9                | <b>Daniel</b> 2:9 27:15   | <b>DIRECTOR</b> 2:7,8      | 49:19                        |
| <b>connections</b> 28:17    | <b>country</b> 47:7,11    | <b>Danielle</b> 3:14 4:9  | <b>disconnect</b> 9:1      | <b>divides</b> 20:16         |
| 28:20                       | 56:19                     | 19:25 23:20,23            | <b>discuss</b> 10:10       | <b>dividing</b> 18:7 20:23   |
| <b>consequently</b> 53:8    | <b>county</b> 9:14 10:3,9 | 33:9 51:1                 | <b>disenfranchising</b>    | 44:21                        |
| <b>consider</b> 9:21 24:14  | 11:1,4,4,6,9,20,20        | <b>data</b> 7:11,13 14:14 | 36:11 38:25                | <b>document</b> 2:16,17      |
| 32:15                       | 13:20 14:11,17            | 14:20                     | <b>dismay</b> 27:21        | <b>Dohe</b> 3:17 30:3,5,7    |
| <b>considerable</b> 16:8    | 18:2 23:25 24:4,6         | <b>day</b> 58:13          | <b>disrespect</b> 11:18    | 30:8 31:3,6 55:1             |
| <b>consideration</b>        | 24:16,17 27:6,9           | <b>days</b> 20:12         | <b>disrupted</b> 27:7      | <b>doing</b> 30:20           |
| 48:14                       | 28:11,12,14 30:16         | <b>Dayton</b> 28:11 30:12 | <b>disruption</b> 2:18     | <b>Donahue</b> 3:21          |

|  |   |   |  |  |  |
|--|---|---|--|--|--|
| 35:23,24 36:1,2<br>37:17<br><b>downgrade</b> 21:18<br><b>draw</b> 7:14 14:10<br>26:12 58:6<br><b>drawing</b> 14:21<br>22:17 41:12<br><b>drawn</b> 26:9 37:1,10<br>40:23 52:3<br><b>drew</b> 27:15<br><b>drive</b> 39:4 41:4<br><b>driving</b> 39:4<br><b>drove</b> 39:3<br><b>Duane</b> 34:11 35:22  | 57:2<br><b>elected</b> 18:18 46:18<br><b>election</b> 30:18<br><b>eloquently</b> 27:1<br><b>email</b> 9:10 19:19<br>30:22 44:23<br><b>Emily</b> 3:18 30:3<br>31:10<br><b>emphasis</b> 32:1<br><b>employee</b> 60:15,16<br><b>encourage</b> 32:15<br><b>endeavor</b> 6:6,12<br><b>ended</b> 13:25<br><b>engage</b> 6:6<br><b>English</b> 5:25,25<br><b>ensure</b> 7:23 8:13<br>58:18<br><b>entered</b> 50:6,8<br><b>entities</b> 27:5,19<br><b>equal</b> 57:1 60:14<br><b>equitable</b> 6:5<br><b>Ervin</b> 3:19 30:4<br>33:1,4,5<br><b>estimates</b> 7:15<br><b>Evans</b> 56:12<br><b>exact</b> 2:16<br><b>example</b> 52:11<br><b>excellent</b> 12:21<br>31:16 45:16<br><b>excuse</b> 13:15 15:7<br>19:21 20:7 26:12<br>29:25 31:9 34:8<br>39:19 43:5 45:24<br>50:4 57:21<br><b>EXECUTIVE</b> 2:7<br><b>exists</b> 33:17<br><b>expect</b> 7:13<br><b>expected</b> 7:19<br><b>expecting</b> 49:9<br><b>explain</b> 52:22<br><b>explaining</b> 30:22<br>31:24<br><b>express</b> 56:5,20<br><b>expressed</b> 14:9 | <b>extending</b> 20:21<br><b>extends</b> 9:24<br><b>extension</b> 10:25<br><b>extra</b> 48:25 | <hr/> <b>F</b> <hr/> <b>F</b> 60:1<br><b>face</b> 31:9<br><b>faced</b> 18:16<br><b>faces</b> 27:22 29:18<br><b>facilitate</b> 6:4 8:22<br>43:22<br><b>factors</b> 54:22<br><b>Fain</b> 2:3 13:15,21<br>14:18 26:6,7<br>46:10 48:3,4,8<br><b>fair</b> 6:5<br><b>fairly</b> 7:24<br><b>fairness</b> 55:1,12<br><b>faith</b> 7:3<br><b>family</b> 18:6 23:25<br>39:3<br><b>far</b> 19:3 28:16<br>30:15 44:10<br><b>farm</b> 23:25<br><b>farming</b> 51:5<br><b>fast</b> 17:16<br><b>favor</b> 23:9<br><b>Fax</b> 1:22<br><b>federal</b> 27:5<br><b>feed</b> 2:18<br><b>feel</b> 32:2 39:10<br>55:11<br><b>feeling</b> 43:20<br><b>fees</b> 60:13<br><b>fellow</b> 31:15 54:25<br>57:4<br><b>fifth</b> 47:6<br><b>Fifty</b> 18:16<br><b>figures</b> 48:12<br><b>final</b> 46:3 48:11<br><b>finally</b> 10:8 19:9<br>23:9,19 25:5<br><b>financially</b> 60:17 | <b>find</b> 10:5 23:11<br><b>finish</b> 39:2 48:5<br><b>first</b> 10:12 19:24<br>20:4 22:14 30:6<br>33:13 40:13 41:21<br>43:10 50:14<br><b>firsthand</b> 26:9<br><b>five</b> 14:16 39:4,6<br>40:9<br><b>flipping</b> 30:9<br><b>focus</b> 42:6<br><b>Foley</b> 44:8<br><b>folks</b> 12:17 29:23<br>57:22<br><b>following</b> 5:4 6:21<br>9:10<br><b>forced</b> 51:23<br><b>foregoing</b> 60:6<br><b>formed</b> 40:10<br><b>former</b> 18:3 46:9<br>46:10,11<br><b>formerly</b> 56:12<br><b>forth</b> 20:21 28:15<br>28:21 38:10<br><b>fortunately</b> 18:17<br><b>forward</b> 6:14 12:22<br>14:15 26:8 41:10<br>41:13 50:11 59:8<br><b>four</b> 25:7 44:19<br>55:17<br><b>Franklin</b> 25:1<br>28:14 51:8<br><b>free</b> 1:23 39:10<br><b>friend</b> 28:23 46:11<br><b>FSA</b> 10:25<br><b>full</b> 19:20 37:16<br>39:11 60:9<br><b>fully</b> 6:7<br><b>funding</b> 16:8<br><b>further</b> 52:22<br><b>future</b> 35:17 41:13<br>45:15 | <b>Garbe</b> 3:14 4:9<br>19:25 23:20,22,23<br>25:13 27:15 33:10<br>51:3<br><b>garbled</b> 2:18<br><b>Garcia</b> 1:17 5:2<br>60:2,23<br><b>GARZA</b> 2:11<br><b>gateway</b> 16:12<br><b>generally</b> 52:4<br><b>gentleman</b> 40:3<br><b>geography</b> 45:13<br>54:22<br><b>geologist</b> 22:10,14<br>54:17<br><b>getting</b> 25:20,20<br>29:11<br><b>giant</b> 36:24,25<br><b>give</b> 48:4 57:2<br>58:13<br><b>given</b> 13:22 14:18<br><b>giving</b> 58:12<br><b>glad</b> 17:19 45:17<br><b>go</b> 8:12 12:4 15:16<br>17:5 35:6,22<br>38:10 44:3 49:2<br>50:18 51:16 52:19<br>52:20 54:13 56:1<br>56:3<br><b>goal</b> 6:4 36:6<br><b>goes</b> 19:3 28:21<br><b>going</b> 5:13 7:20<br>8:12,15 13:13,22<br>14:5 15:10 17:12<br>21:17 25:19 26:16<br>28:15 29:14 32:13<br>34:10,25 35:9,14<br>38:14 40:9,18<br>47:14 51:16 55:24<br><b>good</b> 5:8 7:3 29:22<br>46:8,10 54:7 57:9<br><b>gotten</b> 36:21 55:16<br><b>graduating</b> 24:18<br><b>grant</b> 16:8 |
| <hr/> <b>E</b> <hr/> <b>E</b> 1:17 5:2 31:10<br>60:1,1,2,23<br><b>e-mail</b> 1:24<br><b>earlier</b> 42:4 51:10<br><b>ease</b> 43:22<br><b>East</b> 11:4<br><b>east-west</b> 22:17<br><b>eastern</b> 21:2 24:23<br>51:7<br><b>easy</b> 28:19 33:14<br><b>echo</b> 36:5 54:19<br><b>economic</b> 11:13,19<br>21:18,19 23:6<br>24:9 28:14 54:21<br><b>economically</b> 21:5<br>22:24<br><b>economy</b> 10:23<br><b>educator</b> 45:12<br>54:17 55:5<br><b>effect</b> 36:11<br><b>effectively</b> 6:19<br><b>effort</b> 18:13 36:18<br><b>efforts</b> 9:22<br><b>eight</b> 9:25<br><b>elapsed</b> 2:19 19:10<br>21:25 23:13 25:12<br>39:8 47:20<br><b>elect</b> 18:24 19:6 |   |   | <hr/> <b>G</b> <hr/>   |  |  |



**grant-writing** 11:11  
**Graves** 2:4 25:25  
 26:1 46:10  
**great** 12:23 17:18  
 17:24 18:18 19:7  
 37:18 39:4 50:24  
 51:14,19 55:22,24  
 56:10  
**Greater** 15:19  
**Greetings** 44:5  
**grew** 34:17 54:17  
**grounded** 6:24  
**group** 8:20 21:12  
 49:19  
**grouped** 38:16  
**groups** 8:15  
**growing** 21:9 24:15  
 47:12  
**growth** 11:13,19  
 21:9 47:5,8,15  
**guess** 47:17  
**guests** 16:14  
**Gunshefski** 3:22  
 34:11 37:20,22,22

---

## H

---

**hair** 49:10  
**half** 7:14 18:6,11  
 49:14  
**hand** 29:18 34:5  
 39:14 45:21 49:1  
 54:11 55:20,20  
 57:15 60:19  
**hands** 43:4 50:3,9  
 50:14 57:17,25  
**happens** 30:23 41:2  
**hard** 57:6  
**Havana** 46:23  
**head** 37:4  
**health** 11:2 24:25  
 25:2  
**hear** 5:25 6:1,7,10  
 11:24 13:18 15:14

17:8 26:21 28:4  
 29:22 35:7,9  
 50:11  
**heard** 2:14 9:13,18  
 12:16 20:18 34:22  
 34:23 38:1  
**hearing** 28:9 34:24  
 57:20  
**heart** 24:8 46:16  
**Heights** 11:16  
**hello** 34:13 45:8,9  
 46:9  
**help** 14:14 58:6  
 59:7  
**helpful** 25:24  
**helps** 57:2  
**HEREOF** 60:19  
**hereunto** 60:19  
**Hi** 13:7 15:14 17:22  
 22:8 30:7 31:10  
 41:20 49:9 54:14  
**high** 24:18 47:13  
**high-school** 22:13  
**highway** 18:7  
 21:17 52:25 53:12  
 53:12  
**hill** 41:4  
**history** 36:20 56:15  
 56:15  
**hometown** 44:9  
**hope** 5:23 55:13  
**hopeful** 14:21  
**hopefully** 14:13  
 44:23  
**Horan** 44:9  
**horizontal** 20:24  
 22:18 24:21 27:16  
 33:16  
**horizontally** 30:10  
**hospital** 11:4  
**hottest** 47:6,10  
**hours** 25:7,10  
 31:20 39:4,6 59:2  
**house** 46:17 54:3

**housing** 32:11,11  
 32:13,17  
**housing-authority**  
 31:12  
**hover** 5:20  
**hurdles** 11:12  
**hydropower** 24:12

---

## I

---

**I-90** 53:11  
**Idaho** 46:24 47:10  
**idea** 36:20  
**ideas** 6:14  
**identify** 27:4  
**importance** 16:15  
**important** 6:10 8:6  
 12:18 15:24 16:11  
 22:15 24:13 56:10  
 56:18  
**includes** 10:2 42:3  
**including** 18:17  
 25:2  
**inclusive** 20:20  
**incorporating** 9:24  
**increase** 52:7  
**incredibly** 16:11  
**INDEX** 3:1 4:1  
**Indian** 23:10 38:25  
 56:14  
**indicate** 49:17  
**indiscernible** 2:14  
 10:22,24 29:4  
**individual** 8:16  
 17:20  
**individuals** 8:8,9  
 8:15 10:14 18:19  
 18:24 56:6 57:24  
**industry** 31:21  
 33:19 51:10  
**information** 13:23  
 35:5 45:14  
**infrastructure** 38:9  
**inherent** 8:4  
**injustices** 6:15

**input** 7:23  
**inquired** 30:18  
**inside** 44:18  
**instance** 52:23  
**instruments** 23:5  
**intact** 48:15 56:7  
**integrate** 11:3  
**intended** 42:21  
**interest** 8:3 14:10  
 47:1 48:9  
**interested** 9:8 10:8  
 49:11 60:18  
**interesting** 31:17  
**interestingly** 18:2  
**interests** 8:1  
**Internet** 45:9  
**interpretation**  
 58:17  
**interpreters** 58:21  
**interrupt** 54:6  
**interstate** 21:15,16  
**invite** 8:15 26:13  
**issue** 40:19,20,21  
 53:10  
**issues** 6:16 32:16  
 42:6

---

## J

---

**J** 20:6,9,11 28:8  
 29:4 35:23 36:2  
 37:17 44:5,7 49:9  
 51:19 52:16  
**Jack** 3:21 34:11  
 35:22,24  
**JAMIE** 2:8  
**Janis** 26:17 29:8  
**Jay** 3:16 26:17  
 28:10  
**Jeffrey** 4:5,10 9:15  
 43:8 44:3 51:17  
**jerrymandering**  
 18:12  
**jobs** 24:12 28:21  
**Joe** 2:3 18:9 57:5

**John** 3:12 19:25  
 20:6 24:3 27:14  
 33:9  
**Johnson** 3:15 26:17  
 26:20,21,24 28:3  
 29:16  
**join** 10:22 11:17  
 23:23 24:10 45:12  
 49:3  
**joined** 11:21 58:5  
**joining** 6:3 17:19  
 23:24 39:18 42:12  
**Jonnie** 4:8 49:4  
**Joseph** 3:11 4:13  
 15:11 17:21,22,24  
 17:25 19:11,15,18  
 36:6 55:20,25  
 56:2,4 57:19  
**June** 60:20  
**jurisdiction** 6:17

---

## K

---

**K** 22:8 54:14,16  
**keep** 12:18 47:17  
**keeping** 16:14  
 48:14 56:7  
**Kennewick** 38:11  
**key** 16:16 24:11  
 25:4  
**kick** 5:13  
**kicked** 14:1  
**kids** 23:3  
**kind** 27:9 37:3,10  
 47:9 57:20  
**kinds** 31:21  
**King** 44:17  
**Kirsten** 3:13 4:12  
 19:25 22:7,8 24:4  
 54:13,16 55:19  
**Kittitas** 25:1  
**Knapp** 3:12 19:25  
 20:3,6,6,9,11 22:1  
 27:14 33:9  
**know** 7:16 14:23

|   |   |  |  |   |
|---|---|--|--|---|
| 24:18 28:18 34:19<br>34:23 35:2,2,6,8<br>36:9 37:8 46:9<br>47:12 48:11 49:12<br>49:17,18 53:12,22<br>55:5,23 56:9,21<br>56:24,25 57:4   | <b>Liberty</b> 16:1 47:3<br><b>Lic</b> 60:24<br><b>lies</b> 11:19<br><b>Likewise</b> 53:5<br><b>Lincoln</b> 11:1,3,6,9<br>11:20<br><b>Linda</b> 3:22 34:11<br>37:20,22<br><b>line</b> 14:4 18:7 20:16<br>20:24 22:18 41:2<br>46:19,21,24,24<br>52:10,12 54:4<br><b>lines</b> 9:24 14:11,22<br>19:2 24:7 27:16<br>41:8,9 53:9,21<br>56:17<br><b>linkage</b> 16:2<br><b>linked</b> 10:24 16:15<br><b>linking</b> 33:20<br><b>LISA</b> 2:7<br><b>listen</b> 6:11 7:22<br>13:8 42:21<br><b>listening</b> 5:24 28:1<br>57:8<br><b>literally</b> 37:1<br><b>little</b> 50:12 52:22<br>55:16<br><b>live</b> 8:11,11 34:18<br>38:3 41:22<br><b>lived</b> 18:3<br><b>lives</b> 53:14<br><b>living</b> 22:10 54:20<br><b>local</b> 11:2 13:23,24<br><b>located</b> 28:10<br><b>long</b> 20:13 54:4<br><b>Loni</b> 3:10 15:10<br>16:25<br><b>look</b> 9:1 12:22<br>24:13 26:8 28:18<br>28:18 31:4 36:24<br>37:15,16 41:10,12<br>59:8<br><b>looking</b> 14:15<br>29:17 36:22 37:3 | 44:14<br><b>losing</b> 18:21<br><b>lost</b> 55:17<br><b>lot</b> 28:14,15 32:10<br>33:18 34:24 40:1<br>40:16,23 47:5,15<br>53:20 59:2<br><b>love</b> 11:20<br><b>lower</b> 22:21,25<br><b>luck</b> 28:1 57:9<br><b>Lucy</b> 18:18 | <b>meet</b> 7:4 8:2<br><b>meeting</b> 1:7 5:11,20<br>6:1 7:8,22 10:15<br>14:12,12 34:23<br>35:15 37:14,16<br>40:13 46:3 57:25<br>58:3 59:2,9<br><b>meetings</b> 9:14<br>35:17 58:14<br><b>member</b> 17:25 37:6<br>57:5<br><b>members</b> 6:3 12:8<br>19:7 23:10 25:18<br>58:5,8<br><b>membership</b> 18:14<br><b>mention</b> 38:7<br><b>mentioned</b> 33:22<br>42:3 43:14<br><b>Merit</b> 1:17<br><b>message</b> 5:14<br><b>Michael</b> 3:6 10:16<br><b>middle</b> 24:10<br><b>mileage</b> 31:20,24<br><b>miles</b> 38:4<br><b>Miller</b> 3:6 10:16,19<br>10:20 11:23 13:14<br><b>Millwood</b> 16:1 47:3<br><b>mind</b> 10:17 15:12<br>41:17<br><b>minimum</b> 24:5<br><b>minutes</b> 2:19 8:17<br>9:5,7 23:16 28:4<br>32:22 45:2 58:24<br><b>mispronounce</b><br>15:11<br><b>mispronouncing</b><br>30:4 33:2<br><b>missed</b> 35:3<br><b>mission</b> 6:22<br><b>mobile</b> 11:5<br><b>Molly</b> 4:6 43:8 45:6<br><b>moment</b> 42:14<br><b>Monday</b> 59:8<br><b>months</b> 9:15 | <b>Moses</b> 21:14<br><b>mother</b> 22:12 23:3<br>54:18<br><b>move</b> 8:20 52:7<br><b>moved</b> 20:15 52:8<br><b>moving</b> 14:7 20:23<br>21:8 40:12<br><b>municipal</b> 32:16<br><b>Murray</b> 2:10 8:21<br>10:13 12:4 13:3<br>15:9 16:25 17:20<br>19:24 22:6 23:19<br>26:15,22 28:7<br>29:8 30:2 32:25<br>34:10 35:20,25<br>37:20 39:21 41:17<br>42:17 43:7,10<br>44:3 45:5 46:1<br>49:3,7 50:7,13,18<br>50:22,25 51:16<br>52:17 54:10,13<br>55:18,25 57:13,24<br><b>musical</b> 23:5<br><b>mute</b> 12:1,25 16:20<br>22:2 23:21 28:7<br>29:5 35:19 56:3<br><b>muted</b> 2:20 9:7<br><b>muting</b> 36:11 |
| <hr/> <b>L</b> <hr/>  |   | <hr/> <b>M</b> <hr/>   | <hr/> <b>N</b> <hr/>   |   |
| <b>L</b> 15:14,17 16:23<br>17:8,10 37:22<br><b>labeled</b> 9:25<br><b>labor-market</b> 51:6<br><b>Lake</b> 16:1 21:14<br>41:5 47:3 52:24<br><b>Lance</b> 3:9 15:10,12<br><b>language</b> 5:23<br>58:17,21<br><b>large</b> 44:16<br><b>largely</b> 54:23<br><b>larger</b> 7:21<br><b>largest</b> 24:15<br><b>lastly</b> 37:20 52:17<br><b>Latino</b> 24:16<br><b>Latinx</b> 24:22<br><b>law</b> 7:4<br><b>leaders</b> 18:17<br><b>leadership</b> 58:15<br><b>learn</b> 17:15,17<br>30:16<br><b>leave</b> 44:24<br><b>left</b> 41:6 51:24<br>52:25<br><b>legislation</b> 46:12<br><b>legislative</b> 7:18,19<br>9:23 10:2 15:22<br>16:4,5,10 18:4,8<br>19:2 23:1,11<br>36:20 40:3,22,25<br>41:9,24 42:1<br>46:14 53:1<br><b>let's</b> 10:11 34:15<br><b>letting</b> 33:23<br><b>level</b> 30:23 |   |  | <b>name</b> 2:15 8:23 9:4<br>12:10 17:25 20:4<br>22:8 23:23 25:19<br>28:9 30:7 31:10<br>33:2 37:21 41:20<br><b>names</b> 30:4 50:21<br><b>nation</b> 23:10 25:9<br>27:22<br><b>Nations</b> 29:22<br><b>native</b> 56:21,25<br><b>natives</b> 57:1<br><b>near</b> 32:7<br><b>need</b> 7:12 22:19<br>31:23 55:8  |   |

**needed** 42:10  
**needs** 18:15 52:1  
**negotiate** 7:3  
**neighbors** 21:23  
 24:3 40:25 41:3  
 56:16  
**networks** 25:4  
**never** 33:11  
**new** 13:22 14:17  
 17:15 21:17 47:13  
 57:24  
**Nicolaysen** 3:13  
 4:12 20:1 22:8,9  
 54:13,14,16,16  
**NIXON** 2:8  
**north** 11:11,13,14  
 11:17 16:6 20:16  
 30:15 33:16 34:18  
 44:10 46:22 47:9  
**northeast** 21:7  
 46:18  
**northern** 20:19,20  
 21:14 38:21 39:5  
 52:4  
**note** 2:13 15:25  
 22:14 31:17 51:5  
**number** 12:17  
 27:11  
**numbers** 40:15

---

## O

---

**oaths** 60:4  
**observations** 27:2  
**observe** 45:14  
**observer** 8:24  
 42:22  
**obvious** 10:23  
**obviously** 31:19  
**offer** 8:17  
**offered** 60:13  
**office** 19:7 57:6  
**offices** 10:25  
**oftentimes** 32:2  
**Oh** 17:10 20:7,7

35:20 48:7 54:6  
**Okanogan** 19:3  
 44:12  
**okay** 13:9 17:5,10  
 17:24 19:18 20:9  
 20:11 28:8 34:17  
 39:16,24 43:4  
 48:19 50:3,22  
 52:16 54:8,12  
 55:22,24,25 57:17  
**Olsen** 4:5,10 9:15  
 9:20 10:4 43:8  
 44:4,5,6,7 45:1  
 51:17,18,19 52:16  
**Olympia** 1:22  
**ongoing** 7:16  
**open** 6:23  
**Opening** 3:3  
**opinion** 37:24  
 38:14,18 44:21  
**opinions** 8:5  
**opportunity** 5:22  
 8:10,13 10:21  
 12:1 19:8,14  
 23:23 36:4 37:24  
 42:23 48:5  
**optimistic** 14:21  
**order** 43:21,22  
 50:17,18  
**Oregon** 16:13 54:4  
**Oreille** 46:21  
**originally** 55:18  
**orphan** 10:1  
**ought** 41:7  
**outcome** 60:18  
**outlined** 7:4  
**outreach** 1:7 2:9  
 12:20 14:15  
**outside** 9:24 53:22  
**owner** 28:10

---

## P

---

**p.m** 5:2 59:11  
**Pacific** 1:21

**Padden** 4:7 46:2,6  
 46:7 47:22 48:2,7  
 49:4  
**page** 3:2 4:2 5:21  
**pages** 1:11 60:10  
**PAILTHORP** 2:9  
**Pakootas** 18:9 57:5  
**pale** 47:9  
**Palouse** 28:19  
**pandemic** 7:9  
 24:24  
**panel** 10:12 11:25  
 13:4 15:4,7,9  
 16:22 17:21 19:15  
 19:21 22:4 23:17  
 23:20 25:18 26:12  
 26:16 29:25 33:1  
 34:8,10 39:19,21  
 40:4 42:15,18  
 43:2,5,7 44:5 45:5  
 45:20,24 46:3,4  
 47:23 50:4,14  
 52:17 54:9,10  
 55:17,23 57:12,21  
**panelist** 8:25  
**panelists** 19:16  
 28:5 29:15 34:4  
 39:13,18  
**Paradise** 53:6  
**paraphrased** 2:16  
**park** 16:7,9,13  
**part** 18:5 21:6  
 30:14 38:20,21  
 39:5 46:14,22  
 49:11 52:4,5  
**participate** 5:23  
 7:2 22:12 56:19  
**participatory** 6:5  
**particular** 51:9,10  
**particularly** 9:16  
**parties** 60:14  
**partisanship** 55:5  
**partnerships** 56:11  
**parts** 22:25 23:24

32:3 42:3  
**party** 10:9 36:12  
 55:5 60:16  
**Pasco** 28:14 38:11  
**PAUL** 2:4  
**PCO** 35:4  
**Pend** 46:21  
**people** 8:17 19:6  
 20:19,19 21:13,23  
 24:15 28:21 34:19  
 34:24 35:1,5 38:3  
 38:19 40:1,20  
 43:14 48:22 55:7  
 58:16  
**percent** 24:17,19  
**perfect** 41:15 52:11  
**period** 9:17 21:2  
**person** 2:20 13:3  
 17:11 32:25 42:17  
 45:5 46:1 47:23  
 49:3 54:11  
**phonetic** 2:15,15  
**physical** 54:22  
**physician** 11:6 38:8  
**pick** 50:19,23  
**piece** 15:24 51:6  
**Pierce** 44:19,21  
**PIÑERO** 2:6  
**pivot** 22:24  
**platform** 2:18  
**play** 5:13 23:3  
**playing** 5:16  
**please** 9:1 10:11  
 12:2 20:5,10  
 25:14 26:19 30:1  
 33:2 39:10,20  
 43:6 45:2,21 49:1  
**point** 14:8 32:5  
 36:15 37:2,10  
 38:8 41:1  
**pointed** 9:23  
**points** 16:16 27:15  
 31:17  
**political** 27:5

**politically** 27:2  
**population** 7:15,25  
 21:1,9 24:16  
 48:11  
**populations** 40:15  
**Porter** 3:20 34:11  
 34:12,13,14,15,17  
 35:13  
**portion** 21:13,14  
**portions** 46:25  
**pose** 48:6  
**possible** 6:13 7:5  
**power** 11:10 18:22  
**powerful** 22:20  
**practice** 14:9  
**precinct** 10:1 35:4  
 53:21  
**precincts** 9:21 53:3  
**prepare** 59:7  
**prepared** 58:14  
**preparing** 59:2  
**present** 5:19 42:13  
**presented** 38:19  
**president** 15:18  
**pretty** 48:14 52:21  
**previous** 20:18  
 38:1 40:4  
**primarily** 42:1  
**primary** 24:2 41:10  
 53:18  
**privilege** 15:18  
**probably** 29:19  
 56:6  
**problem** 20:22  
 32:18 36:2  
**problematic** 27:24  
**problems** 20:19  
 32:14 40:24  
**proceedings** 5:4  
 59:11 60:6,10  
**process** 6:5,23 7:7  
 8:4 11:11 12:21  
 13:22,25 14:1,7  
 14:16 57:9

**produce** 7:5  
**product** 18:12  
**professional** 22:10  
**programs** 11:1  
**progress** 35:9  
**promises** 7:10  
**promoted** 49:5  
**prompted** 29:11  
**pronouncing** 37:21  
**property** 41:2,8  
 53:9,21  
**proposal** 19:1  
**proposed** 21:22  
**proposing** 53:8  
**Prosser** 21:21  
**proud** 56:22  
**provide** 6:23 8:10  
 14:14 32:11 47:24  
 58:18  
**providing** 58:17,22  
 59:3  
**public** 1:7 2:9 3:5  
 4:3 6:3,10,14 8:22  
 58:5  
**public-comment**  
 9:17  
**public-outreach**  
 5:11  
**Pullman** 41:22  
**purpose** 6:20 7:22  
 10:22  
**purposes** 31:18  
**pursuant** 60:4  
**purview** 53:22  
**put** 27:12 28:19  
 38:21,22  
**putting** 14:9

---

**Q**


---

**question** 13:16 15:1  
 29:19 48:2 50:1  
**questions** 8:19 12:1  
 13:1,14 15:4  
 16:21 19:15,16

22:4 23:17 25:16  
 25:18 26:4,7 29:6  
 29:15 32:23 34:4  
 39:13,17 42:14  
 43:2 44:25 45:3  
 45:19,23 47:24  
 48:17 51:20 55:24  
 57:15  
**quick** 13:15 39:25  
**quickly** 35:14  
 37:14 52:21  
**quite** 26:25 33:4  
 51:7 59:2  
**quotation** 2:16

---

**R**


---

**R** 26:21,24 60:1  
**raise** 29:18 34:4  
 39:14 45:21 49:1  
 57:15  
**raised** 43:5 54:11  
 55:19,20 57:18,25  
**raising** 50:9  
**ran** 2:20 18:10 44:8  
 57:5  
**ranch** 54:17  
**rate** 40:6  
**rationale** 37:4  
**RCW** 60:4  
**re-** 31:1  
**reach** 16:6 35:1  
**read** 2:16 44:23  
 47:6  
**Reagan** 20:13  
**real** 31:19,22  
**real-estate** 47:7  
**realize** 9:7 40:15  
**really** 13:7 30:10  
 30:23 37:10 40:16  
 40:19 45:12,13  
 54:21,22 55:9  
**reason** 40:10 44:12  
 51:21,24 53:17  
**reasoning** 33:11

**reasons** 25:3  
**received** 7:11  
**recognize** 54:21  
 58:11  
**recognized** 7:25  
**record** 58:24  
**rectify** 38:6  
**redistricting** 1:2  
 5:10,12 7:10,12  
 9:22 10:10 12:11  
 13:17,20,25 14:1  
 30:17,20,24 35:2  
 35:10 36:18 40:8  
 40:16 55:2,3,10  
 56:8 57:1 59:1,6  
**redrew** 51:22  
**reestablish** 36:7  
**refer** 6:17  
**reference** 16:17  
**referrals** 38:10  
**reflect** 44:20  
**regard** 33:21  
**regarding** 9:18  
 43:14 54:1  
**regardless** 10:9  
**regards** 14:19  
 15:21 16:6  
**region** 24:2,15  
 30:13  
**registered** 1:17  
 9:25  
**reiterate** 38:24  
 43:14  
**relative** 60:15,16  
**release** 33:24  
**remain** 16:20 22:24  
 34:20,21  
**remained** 48:23  
**remaining** 33:24  
**remarks** 3:3 4:15  
**REMEMBERED**  
 5:1  
**rent** 23:5  
**repeat** 20:4

**reporter** 1:17 5:3  
 58:23 60:2  
**reporting** 1:21  
 60:12  
**representative** 18:3  
 46:10,11  
**representatives**  
 15:21 16:7 42:5  
 55:4  
**represented** 28:13  
 34:21 38:4  
**representing** 55:11  
**Republican** 30:19  
 30:25 44:8 52:4  
**Republicans** 41:23  
**request** 15:20  
**requests** 6:8,14  
**research** 14:3  
**Reser** 3:14 4:9  
 19:25 23:20,22,24  
 25:13 27:15 33:10  
 51:3  
**reservation** 12:15  
 12:18 18:4,20  
 19:5 36:8 39:1  
 49:12 54:2 56:7  
**resident** 9:15 18:1  
 30:8 33:5 36:22  
 37:6 42:6  
**residential** 47:16  
 53:10  
**residents** 42:2  
 58:19  
**residing** 5:3 60:3  
**resources** 22:23  
**respect** 7:1,25  
 36:23 55:9 56:17  
**respond** 6:12,18  
 37:14  
**response** 15:5  
 19:17 29:11 34:6  
 39:15 43:3 45:22  
 48:18 50:2 57:16  
**rest** 32:12 52:13

**restate** 31:16  
**result** 12:22  
**retail** 47:15  
**reunification** 28:24  
**reunion** 39:3  
**review** 6:20 7:7  
**Richland** 38:11  
**rid** 51:25  
**right** 13:13,18  
 14:11 26:9 29:7  
 29:24 31:7 33:4  
 34:7 41:5 53:1,2  
 53:14 54:8,9  
 55:17 57:21 58:1  
**Ritzville** 11:8,13  
**River** 19:3 22:21  
 30:12,13  
**rivers** 22:22 31:20  
**RMR** 1:17 60:23  
**road** 38:4 41:5  
 52:24 53:6  
**roads** 53:10  
**roadways** 40:24  
 41:8  
**Robert** 3:15 26:16  
 26:18  
**robust** 23:6  
**Ronald** 20:13  
**room** 25:15 42:13  
 48:23 50:6,8  
**roots** 56:22  
**Rules** 60:11  
**run** 47:22  
**running** 27:8 30:10  
 30:14  
**runs** 11:11 30:15  
 54:3  
**rural** 31:21,21,22  
 32:2 34:19,20,20  
 45:9

---

**S**


---

**S** 41:20  
**sad** 18:5

|                             |                            |                           |                             |                            |
|-----------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------------|
| <b>sale</b> 18:19           | 46:2,6,7,9 47:21           | 27:19 44:17,18            | 33:9,20 49:17               | 46:24 54:4 56:15           |
| <b>Saltese</b> 41:5 52:23   | 48:2,7,8 49:4              | <b>sit</b> 30:21          | <b>spelling</b> 2:15        | 58:19 59:1,6 60:3          |
| <b>Sandra</b> 3:24 39:22    | 56:13                      | <b>sitting</b> 14:4       | <b>spend</b> 31:24          | 60:11                      |
| 41:17                       | <b>send</b> 9:9 30:22      | <b>situation</b> 38:6     | <b>spending</b> 58:10       | <b>stated</b> 26:25 28:22  |
| <b>Sandy</b> 41:20          | <b>sense</b> 11:17 32:10   | <b>size</b> 25:6 31:24    | <b>spent</b> 59:1           | <b>statehood</b> 46:15     |
| <b>Sarah</b> 2:2 3:3 4:15   | 33:21 38:3,15              | <b>slightly</b> 48:12     | <b>spike</b> 52:10          | <b>statement</b> 19:20     |
| 5:9 56:21                   | 53:3,13 55:1,12            | <b>slowly</b> 11:14       | <b>split</b> 9:20 12:15     | 48:24 49:1                 |
| <b>Saturday</b> 5:1 58:12   | <b>sent</b> 44:22          | <b>smaller</b> 23:8       | 24:4 32:8 36:9              | <b>States</b> 56:13        |
| <b>saw</b> 24:24            | <b>sentence</b> 48:5       | <b>Snake</b> 22:21 24:9   | 38:2,25 42:6                | <b>statewide</b> 32:13     |
| <b>saying</b> 8:23 39:2     | <b>separate</b> 27:23      | 30:13                     | <b>splits</b> 24:9          | 48:13                      |
| 55:1                        | 53:18                      | <b>social</b> 28:16 45:13 | <b>splitting</b> 33:12      | <b>status</b> 8:24         |
| <b>schedule</b> 37:16       | <b>seriously</b> 55:14     | 54:21                     | 43:15                       | <b>statute</b> 6:24 14:7   |
| <b>school</b> 9:21 11:8,9   | <b>serve</b> 14:24 16:12   | <b>socially</b> 21:12     | <b>Spokane</b> 9:14,15      | <b>stay</b> 11:24 12:25    |
| 24:18 47:12,13,14           | 55:8                       | <b>sole</b> 47:22         | 10:9 11:3,7,15,20           | 19:13 22:2 23:15           |
| <b>school-district</b> 31:2 | <b>serves</b> 55:7         | <b>solid</b> 52:5         | 12:11 13:17,20              | 25:14 28:4 29:3            |
| <b>scratch</b> 37:3         | <b>service</b> 58:22       | <b>solo</b> 46:4          | 14:11,17 15:19,25           | 35:16 42:13 48:10          |
| <b>screen</b> 5:21 8:25     | <b>services</b> 11:6 59:3  | <b>solve</b> 32:17 33:14  | 18:2 20:19 21:2             | <b>Stevens</b> 39:3,5      |
| 9:6                         | <b>serving</b> 15:18 56:22 | <b>somebody</b> 38:5      | 21:15 30:16,23              | <b>stick</b> 32:22 45:2    |
| se 53:23                    | <b>set</b> 60:19           | 53:14 57:7                | 34:18 35:4 36:18            | <b>straight</b> 52:10,12   |
| <b>Sean</b> 2:10 5:15 8:21  | <b>shape</b> 37:1 51:25    | <b>sorry</b> 15:11 17:22  | 40:8 41:5 42:3,7,8          | <b>street</b> 53:15        |
| 8:23 9:4 10:11              | <b>share</b> 9:8 22:22,23  | 19:11 25:14 28:8          | 44:15 46:15,17,20           | <b>strength</b> 18:13      |
| 12:3 13:2 15:8              | 28:14 30:13 33:18          | 30:3 33:1 49:9            | 46:23,23 47:3,4,6           | <b>strengthen</b> 18:24    |
| 19:22 20:4 22:5             | 33:23 37:24                | 54:6                      | 47:8,17 55:2                | <b>strong</b> 14:10 18:20  |
| 23:18 26:14 32:24           | <b>shared</b> 7:25         | <b>sort</b> 37:9          | <b>spoke</b> 55:1           | 22:24 47:1                 |
| 35:18,19 37:19              | <b>sharing</b> 39:10       | <b>source</b> 2:17        | <b>sports</b> 22:13 23:3    | <b>stronghold</b> 10:3     |
| 41:16 42:16 44:2            | <b>sharings</b> 26:11      | <b>south</b> 11:18 20:16  | <b>Sprague</b> 11:5,9       | <b>strongly</b> 38:5       |
| 45:4,25 49:2 50:5           | <b>shop</b> 23:4           | 33:16 52:8 54:2,2         | <b>staff</b> 31:4 59:1,6    | <b>students</b> 24:19 55:9 |
| 50:17 51:15 54:9            | <b>shopping</b> 25:4       | <b>southeast</b> 21:7     | <b>stalemate</b> 13:25      | <b>studies</b> 45:13       |
| 55:16 57:12,22              | <b>shout</b> 36:24         | 46:20                     | <b>stand</b> 18:19          | <b>stuff</b> 44:14 53:17   |
| <b>second</b> 5:11 7:14     | <b>showed</b> 46:2         | <b>southern</b> 21:6,6,13 | <b>start</b> 10:16 12:5     | 54:2                       |
| 38:7                        | <b>side</b> 16:2 31:21     | 22:15,16 24:22            | 13:5 15:10 17:1             | <b>submit</b> 19:19 39:11  |
| <b>Secondly</b> 23:3        | 34:19 53:5                 | 38:20 46:25 51:7          | 22:7 26:16,18               | <b>substantial</b> 27:11   |
| <b>seconds</b> 9:2          | <b>sides</b> 53:13         | 52:5 54:23,24             | 29:9 34:12,15               | 32:13,18                   |
| <b>see</b> 8:18 25:15       | <b>sign</b> 10:14 58:20    | <b>Spanish</b> 6:1,2      | 42:19 43:11,11              | <b>substitute</b> 17:11    |
| 27:12 31:9 33:13            | <b>signed</b> 8:8 58:3     | 58:17                     | 47:14 49:7 50:25            | <b>successful</b> 14:16    |
| 34:15 35:20 39:16           | <b>significantly</b> 36:11 | <b>speak</b> 9:5 10:21    | <b>starting</b> 10:17       | <b>succinct</b> 33:7       |
| 43:4,10 45:2,23             | <b>similar</b> 22:22       | 23:9 30:9 36:4            | 15:13 17:3 41:18            | <b>Sue</b> 1:17 5:2 60:2   |
| 49:14,22 50:20              | <b>Simms</b> 2:5 26:3,4    | 41:22,25 50:9             | <b>state</b> 1:2 5:2,9 14:1 | 60:23                      |
| 52:6 57:17                  | 58:6                       | 54:22                     | 15:20 16:5,7,7,7,9          | <b>suggest</b> 40:14       |
| <b>seeing</b> 12:22 26:8    | <b>Simone</b> 3:10 15:10   | <b>speakers</b> 27:13     | 16:12 18:3 20:12            | <b>summarize</b> 9:13,17   |
| 50:3 57:24 59:8             | 16:25 17:6,8,10            | <b>speaking</b> 20:23     | 20:16 21:7,13,14            | <b>summary</b> 10:11       |
| <b>select</b> 6:2           | <b>simply</b> 20:24 27:3   | 22:9                      | 25:7 27:5 31:18             | <b>Sunnyside</b> 38:18     |
| <b>Senate</b> 56:13         | 27:11 30:25                | <b>special</b> 14:12      | 31:22 32:4,12,18            | <b>supervisor</b> 30:18    |
| <b>senator</b> 4:7 16:8     | <b>single</b> 23:1,11      | <b>specifically</b> 11:3  | 38:16 44:14 46:24           | <b>support</b> 23:12       |

|   |   |   |   |   |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| 28:24 31:2 36:14<br>57:7 59:3<br><b>supported</b> 56:6<br><b>supporter</b> 56:14<br><b>supposed</b> 17:12<br>49:18<br><b>sure</b> 24:20 25:20<br>35:5 50:20 51:11<br>55:23<br><b>surprised</b> 30:16<br><b>surrounding</b> 11:15<br>51:21<br><b>SW</b> 1:22<br><b>swallow</b> 36:25<br><b>synthesize</b> 6:11<br><b>system</b> 11:2   | 58:1<br><b>territory</b> 27:22<br><b>testified</b> 8:18<br><b>testifier's</b> 2:20<br><b>testifiers</b> 8:19,20<br>50:5,7,8<br><b>testify</b> 8:8,10,16<br>15:21 48:22 57:23<br>58:4<br><b>testifying</b> 26:2<br><b>testimony</b> 8:22<br>9:12 10:18 12:6,8<br>13:5 15:13 17:1<br>19:12 20:18 22:7<br>23:15 25:23 26:18<br>28:9 29:10,23<br>33:3 38:1 39:23<br>41:19 42:19 43:12<br>49:7<br><b>thank</b> 5:18 10:13<br>10:20,20 11:22,23<br>12:2,6,7,20,23,24<br>13:11,12 14:23,24<br>14:25 15:2,6,17<br>16:19,22,23 17:2<br>17:5,18,19 19:20<br>20:9 22:1,6 23:14<br>23:19,22 25:13,23<br>26:1,4,11,15,24<br>27:25 28:3,9 29:1<br>29:2,24 31:3,6<br>32:19,21 33:23,24<br>34:1,9 35:11,12<br>36:2,3,17 37:12<br>37:13,23 39:9,18<br>39:24 41:14,15,19<br>41:21 42:10,12,22<br>42:24,24 43:9,12<br>43:24,25 45:1,16<br>46:5,8 48:7,7,16<br>48:19 49:24 50:16<br>50:24 51:2,3,13<br>51:14 52:14 54:5<br>55:13,14,15 56:4 | 57:8,10,11,19,20<br>58:9,11,14,19,21<br>58:23 59:7,10<br><b>thankful</b> 58:5<br><b>thanks</b> 45:24<br><b>themselves</b> 52:9<br><b>thereof</b> 60:18<br><b>thing</b> 27:17 37:9<br>38:7 52:3 53:3,19<br><b>things</b> 5:13 14:4,20<br>28:22 31:25 33:15<br>40:1,14 52:1<br><b>think</b> 14:20 16:16<br>21:11 24:13 27:10<br>27:14,21 30:6<br>31:17 33:20,22<br>34:24 40:4,24<br>41:7 49:15 53:20<br>54:8 55:16 56:3<br>56:17,18<br><b>third</b> 37:9<br><b>thoroughfares</b><br>53:11<br><b>thought</b> 14:4<br><b>thoughtful</b> 25:23<br><b>three</b> 8:16,17,19<br>9:15 11:8 30:19<br>30:25 39:13 40:9<br>50:8,11,15 55:18<br><b>tie</b> 23:6 51:8<br><b>tied</b> 11:1 38:9<br><b>ties</b> 28:15,16<br><b>Tillotson</b> 3:18 30:3<br>31:8,8,10,11<br><b>time</b> 2:19,19 8:9,24<br>9:6,8 15:17 16:17<br>19:10 21:25 23:13<br>25:12 31:24 32:19<br>33:24 34:2 39:8<br>42:7,11 44:24<br>47:20,22,23 48:21<br>48:25 50:11 52:13<br>52:21 55:6 58:10<br>58:12,13 | <b>timelines</b> 14:18<br><b>times</b> 40:23<br><b>today</b> 5:20,24 6:3<br>7:22 8:14,21<br>10:14 12:21 13:8<br>15:17,20,25 17:19<br>18:20 19:1 22:9<br>26:11 28:9 31:16<br>32:19 33:17 39:19<br>41:22 42:4,10,22<br>45:12 48:22 49:10<br>55:14 57:8 58:10<br>58:17,22<br><b>today's</b> 7:7<br><b>Tolar</b> 3:23 4:11<br>39:22,23 52:18<br><b>told</b> 30:19<br><b>Toll</b> 1:23<br><b>Tom</b> 44:8<br><b>tool</b> 41:11<br><b>topics</b> 10:10<br><b>total</b> 10:14<br><b>totally</b> 44:16<br><b>tourist</b> 33:19<br><b>town</b> 11:5<br><b>trade-offs</b> 8:4<br><b>transcribed</b> 60:7<br><b>transcript</b> 1:5 60:8<br>60:9<br><b>transcription</b> 60:8<br><b>transition</b> 8:25<br><b>translation</b> 5:22<br><b>transmission</b> 2:18<br><b>transparency</b> 7:1<br><b>transparent</b> 6:23<br><b>transportation</b><br>21:8,8 24:12 25:4<br><b>traveling</b> 16:14<br>52:23<br><b>trends</b> 51:6<br><b>Tri-</b> 33:20<br><b>Tri-Cities</b> 21:3,20<br>23:4,5,6,7 30:11<br>33:21 38:10,17 | <b>tribal</b> 18:14 57:4<br><b>tribe</b> 18:11,16,17<br>19:5,7 20:21 25:8<br>28:25 36:9 44:11<br>49:19<br><b>tribes</b> 12:14 18:1<br>36:8 43:20 56:16<br><b>tries</b> 8:4<br><b>trouble</b> 40:2<br><b>true</b> 60:9<br><b>try</b> 32:10<br><b>trying</b> 11:2 17:15<br><b>Tuesday</b> 40:13<br><b>tune</b> 27:11<br><b>tuned</b> 35:16<br><b>turn</b> 12:5 13:4<br>16:17 17:1 29:8<br>42:18<br><b>turning</b> 10:17<br>15:12 41:18<br><b>turns</b> 52:24<br><b>two</b> 2:19 8:16 9:4,7<br>11:2 22:12 25:9<br>27:23 28:5,16<br>38:2 49:20 50:13<br>55:23<br><b>types</b> 22:22 |
| <hr/> <b>T</b> <hr/>  |   |   |   | <hr/> <b>U</b> <hr/>  |
| <b>T</b> 39:24 52:20 54:7<br>60:1,1<br><b>Tacoma</b> 5:3 60:3<br><b>take</b> 51:24<br><b>taken</b> 1:15 55:14<br>60:6<br><b>takes</b> 25:7,9<br><b>talk</b> 8:14 41:24<br>46:13<br><b>talking</b> 27:18 33:15<br>37:25 40:4<br><b>teaching</b> 45:15 55:8<br><b>team</b> 18:18<br><b>technician</b> 8:21<br><b>teenage</b> 22:12<br><b>Tel</b> 1:22<br><b>telehealth</b> 11:5<br><b>tells</b> 44:9<br><b>ten</b> 8:9 46:22<br><b>tenure</b> 6:9<br><b>termination</b> 18:16<br><b>terms</b> 7:21,24 56:7<br>56:18 60:14<br><b>Terrific</b> 15:6 26:10<br>30:5 34:1,7 48:19<br>49:6 50:10,16 |   |   | <b>unanimously</b> 36:13<br><b>understand</b> 40:20<br><b>understood</b> 2:14<br>31:23 32:3 33:11<br><b>unifying</b> 29:21<br><b>unincorporated</b><br>23:24 47:4<br><b>united</b> 25:9 44:12<br>56:13<br><b>unmute</b> 29:9 42:19<br>43:11 46:7<br><b>unmuting</b> 41:18<br><b>update</b> 35:16<br><b>urban</b> 32:3<br><b>urge</b> 9:9 48:14  |   |

**use** 30:25 45:14  
**utmost** 16:15

---

**V**

---

**validate** 13:24  
**valley** 15:19 16:1  
46:17,23,25 47:2  
47:3,8,13,18  
**value** 18:13  
**values** 6:20,22  
**Vaughn** 3:25 39:22  
42:18,20,25  
**vendor** 14:14  
**VERBATIM** 1:5  
**verified** 2:17  
**vertical** 20:24  
27:17  
**vertically** 20:17  
30:10  
**viability** 11:19 24:9  
**video** 5:13,16 10:17  
12:5 13:5 15:12  
17:1,4 29:9 34:16  
41:18 42:18,20  
43:11 45:9,10  
49:10 58:7  
**views** 33:23  
**visible** 9:2  
**visiting** 11:6  
**vitality** 8:5  
**voice** 36:19 57:1  
**voices** 6:24 24:20  
36:12  
**vote** 18:6,11,14,22  
18:24 19:5 49:15  
**voters** 9:22,25 10:6  
27:3,10 45:15  
57:2  
**votes** 52:4,5  
**voting** 19:2 36:12  
43:22 49:13 58:9

---

**W**

---

**W** 42:20

**WA** 1:17,22 58:6  
60:24  
**WAC** 60:12  
**Walkinshaw** 2:6  
25:21,22 29:20  
46:11  
**Walla** 21:3,3,16,16  
21:19,19 22:11,11  
22:22,22 23:7,7  
23:25,25 24:4,4  
24:16,16,18,18,25  
24:25 25:8,8,10  
25:10 27:3,3  
28:13,13,22,22  
30:8,8,11,11,17  
30:17,24,24 31:11  
31:11,15 33:6,6,9  
37:25,25 38:1,1  
38:12,12,15,15  
39:6,6 51:8,8  
54:20,20,25 55:3  
55:3  
**Wallan** 54:25  
**Wallans** 31:15 33:9  
**Walt** 44:9  
**want** 6:1 7:7 9:13  
19:9 20:20 22:7  
24:19 25:17 29:8  
30:9 34:12,21  
35:5 36:17 37:15  
39:2,23 41:21,24  
43:1 45:18 48:4  
49:8 50:19 52:6  
52:10,10,22 54:19  
55:23 56:20,24  
57:19 58:2,8,16  
**wanted** 13:8 31:14  
32:5 36:5,19 38:7  
40:14 41:25 43:13  
43:23 46:13 51:11  
53:24 56:1,5  
**Washington** 1:2  
5:2,4,9 6:6 20:12  
21:2 24:23 28:11

30:8 31:11 38:16  
51:7 56:15 58:18  
58:25 59:6 60:3  
**Washingtonians**  
7:6  
**wasn't** 49:9  
**water** 22:23 24:7  
**waterway** 24:12  
**way** 20:24 24:21  
27:7,14,16 29:19  
33:14 34:25 35:8  
36:17 37:5 49:23  
52:25 54:2,4  
**ways** 32:6 54:4  
**we'll** 11:24 12:4  
14:12 19:19 22:6  
25:15 44:3 45:2  
50:25  
**we're** 5:13 6:12  
8:12,15 9:8 14:15  
14:19 17:18 23:25  
24:20 26:15 29:11  
35:2 37:1,6 40:9  
40:10 45:17 46:25  
47:9 48:9 51:16  
56:22 58:4  
**we've** 6:21 8:8  
12:16 33:15 46:14  
46:16,22 47:12,13  
**weather** 22:23  
**web** 8:21  
**website** 37:15  
**week** 14:13 40:13  
58:13  
**weekend** 39:2  
**weigh** 8:4  
**welcome** 5:10 6:4  
6:25 8:5 10:19  
13:6 15:15 17:6,7  
17:23 20:2,8  
26:23 34:14 36:1  
44:6 45:7 46:5  
51:18 54:15 56:2  
**Wenatchee** 44:9

**went** 40:12 44:10  
46:18,21 50:14  
**west** 20:21 41:4  
44:10 52:23  
**western** 53:5  
**Whitman** 11:1,19  
22:11 41:23 42:2  
42:6,9 46:19  
**William** 3:25 39:21  
42:18  
**willing** 11:24 12:25  
19:22 22:2 29:3  
32:22  
**willingness** 14:24  
**winding** 37:5  
**wine** 33:19 51:10  
**wish** 21:24 23:16  
28:1 31:16  
**wit** 5:4  
**WITNESS** 60:19  
**wonder** 49:25  
**wondering** 13:21  
**words** 2:14 57:20  
**work** 12:23 14:23  
16:8 32:6,10,17  
36:18 55:9,13  
56:9  
**worked** 46:11  
56:12  
**working** 11:4 22:11  
56:16  
**writing** 39:11  
**written** 9:10  
**wrong** 37:21  
**WSU** 36:25  
**www.capitolpaci...**  
1:24  
**Wyoming** 54:17

---

**X**

---

**Y**

---

**Y** 17:22,24 56:4  
**y'all's** 53:22

**Yakima** 25:1,9,10  
29:22 30:11 33:20  
38:18 51:9  
**Yeah** 37:22 49:2  
52:20  
**year** 7:13 24:24  
46:15 47:14  
**years** 18:16 24:1  
46:22  
**Yep** 13:19,20,20  
48:3  
**yield** 52:13  
**young** 24:14 43:17  
**Yvette** 3:11 4:13  
15:11 17:21,25  
55:20,25

---

**Z**

---

**Zoom** 1:10 5:21  
8:24

---

**0**

---



---

**1**

---

**1** 1:11 7:12 60:10  
**1:00** 5:2  
**10** 3:6  
**12** 3:7 9:24  
**12th** 18:8,25  
**13** 3:8  
**14** 56:6  
**15** 3:9 38:3 56:6  
**155** 18:7  
**16** 3:10  
**160** 24:1  
**17** 3:11  
**18** 49:12  
**1890** 46:14  
**195** 53:12  
**1980** 46:18  
**1995** 51:22

---

**2**

---

**2:12** 59:11  
**20** 3:12

|                            |                            |  |  |
|----------------------------|----------------------------|--|--|
| <b>2001</b> 52:8           | 53:2 54:23                 |  |  |
| <b>2011</b> 52:8           |                            |  |  |
| <b>2021</b> 1:13 5:1,11    | <b>5</b>                   |  |  |
| 60:7,20                    | <b>5</b> 3:3 10:7,22 11:11 |  |  |
| <b>22</b> 1:13 3:13 5:1    | 11:12,21 41:6              |  |  |
| <b>22nd</b> 60:7           | 54:1                       |  |  |
| <b>23</b> 3:14 10:15       | <b>5.28.010</b> 60:4       |  |  |
| <b>2401</b> 1:22           | <b>50</b> 4:9              |  |  |
| <b>26</b> 3:15 24:17       | <b>51</b> 4:10             |  |  |
| <b>27</b> 52:25 53:12      | <b>52</b> 4:11             |  |  |
| <b>2781</b> 1:17 60:24     | <b>54</b> 4:12             |  |  |
| <b>28</b> 3:16             | <b>55</b> 4:13             |  |  |
| <b>29th</b> 52:11          | <b>58</b> 4:15             |  |  |
| <b>3</b>                   | <b>5th</b> 1:8 7:17 8:7,13 |  |  |
| <b>30</b> 3:17             | 9:18 12:9,13,16            |  |  |
| <b>308-14-130</b> 60:12    | 12:17 13:8 15:22           |  |  |
| <b>31</b> 3:18             | 18:9 20:13,23              |  |  |
| <b>32</b> 3:19             | 22:16 24:5 25:5            |  |  |
| <b>32nd</b> 52:24          | 30:10,14 32:9              |  |  |
| <b>34</b> 3:20             | 33:12 35:1,16              |  |  |
| <b>35</b> 3:21             | 38:20,22 39:5              |  |  |
| <b>352-2054</b> 1:22       | 40:18 44:7 54:24           |  |  |
| <b>360</b> 1:22,22         | <b>6</b>                   |  |  |
| <b>37</b> 3:22             | <b>60</b> 1:11 60:10       |  |  |
| <b>38</b> 8:8              | <b>64</b> 44:8             |  |  |
| <b>39</b> 3:23             | <b>6th</b> 36:22,23 37:6   |  |  |
| <b>3rd</b> 9:23 36:23 37:1 | 37:15 44:22 51:21          |  |  |
| 37:2 44:22 51:22           | 51:24 52:5 53:7            |  |  |
| <b>4</b>                   | <b>7</b>                   |  |  |
| <b>4</b> 41:3,4,6 60:20    | <b>7010</b> 35:4           |  |  |
| <b>407-0148</b> 1:23       | <b>705-6539</b> 1:22       |  |  |
| <b>41</b> 3:24             | <b>7th</b> 18:4,7,25 19:2  |  |  |
| <b>42</b> 3:25 24:19       | <b>8</b>                   |  |  |
| <b>44</b> 4:5              | <b>800</b> 1:23            |  |  |
| <b>45</b> 4:6              | <b>9</b>                   |  |  |
| <b>46</b> 4:7 10:14        | <b>9</b> 41:2,3,7          |  |  |
| <b>49</b> 4:8              | <b>90</b> 51:22            |  |  |
| <b>4th</b> 12:15 15:22     | <b>98502</b> 1:22          |  |  |
| 16:5,11 20:14,23           | <b>9th</b> 10:2 41:25 53:1 |  |  |
| 22:16 24:5 30:9            | 53:1,6 54:3,3              |  |  |
| 32:9 33:12 38:20           |                            |  |  |
| 38:22 46:13 47:18          |                            |  |  |